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Ernst & Young RAKEEHERAT Tel BiE: +852 2846 9888
§ * 27/F, OneTaikooPlace  mpmipmmeio7oys  Fax {§E: +852 2868 4432

979 King's Road K —EE2TIR ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor's report
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Water Limited

(the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 7 to 110, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
Jor the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Cade™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Giobal Umited
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Independent anditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

L

HK(IFRIC) Interpret&ti&z 12 - Service Concession Arrangements ("HK(IFRIC)-Int 12") and Revenue

Recognition

The Group entets into service concession arrangements
with municipals in the People's Republic of China to
build and/or operate waste water treatment plants. The
Group recognises the consideration for the construction
services as contract assets and/or intangible assets for
service concession arrangements within the scope of
HK(FRIC)-Int 12. As the related amounts are material
and the application of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires
significant management judgement, we identified this as
a key audit matter.

The Group applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 in its recognition
of revenue from service concession arrangements, which
includes revenue relating to construction services,
operation income and finance income. Disclosure of the
revenue is included in notes 2.5, 3 and 5 to the financial
statements.

Construction service revenue is measured based on the
Group's estimation of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction completed
during the year. Significant judgement is required in
determining the fair value of the construction services
and involves estimation of the total construction costs
and the margin for each contract. The Group engaged an
independent financial modeling consultant to assist in
the estimation of the fair value of the construction
services. The percentage of construction completed
during the year is estimated based on the survey of work
performed by independent surveyors with relevant
qualifications and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of construction
completed.

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
revenue recognition policies, evaluated the Group's
process in assessing the applicability of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12 and also reviewed the associated agreements to
assess whether these agreements are appropriately
identified as service concession arrangements to be
within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12.

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the independent consultant and
surveyors engaged by management. We reviewed the
progress reports for projects under construction and
the reasonableness of the revenue recognised over
time.

We reviewed management's computation of
amortised cost of contract assets and intangible assets
and allocation of consideration between contract
assets and intangible assets and the related revenue
recognised during the year and tested key estimates
including discount rates used by management by
comparing to the relevant market interest rates to
identify any inappropriate estimates.

We engaged our internal specialists to review the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness of
certain key assumptions such as the margin used and
the industry comparable companies in the
determination of the fair value of the construction
services in the financial model.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
related to service concession arrangements in the
financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade
receivables amounting to HK$2,296,652,000, net of
expected credit losses ("ECL") allowance of
HK$252,045,000. The Group determines impairment
losses by making debtor-specific assessment of ECL for
credit impaired debtors and has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment for the
remaining group of debtors taking into consideration
impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.

The estimation of impairment loss of trade receivables is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of trade receivables as well as expectation of
forward-looking factors. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, taking into consideration
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Accordingly, we identified this
as a key audit matter. Disclosures of the trade
receivables are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 20 to the
financial statements.

L

We obtained an understanding of management's
processes relating to the monitoring of trade
receivables.

In assessing the adequacy of the ECL allowance, we
reviewed the ageing analysis of the debtors to identify
potential collectability issues, reviewed data used in
management's assessment of default rates and
assessed the reasonableness of management's
assumptions used in establishing the forward-looking |
adjustments including the potential impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, we discussed with |
management about the status of significant overdue |
individual  debtors' balance, management's |
consideration of the debtors' specific profiles and |
risks, reviewed seftlement history and assessed |
management's assumptions used to determine the
ECL allowance. We also requested direct
confirmations and considered receipts subsequent to
the year end.

We further considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures regarding the estimation uncertainty
involved in determining the ECL allowance.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

| Impairment assessment of goodwill

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets requires goodwill to be
tested annually for impairment or more frequently when
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit
| ("CGU") may be impaired. This assessment requires the
exercise of significant judgement about the future market
conditions, including future cash flows to be generated
from the continuing use of the waste water treatment
plants over the service concession period. The
determination of the recoverable amount requires
| judgement in both identification and valuation of the
relevant CGU given the changes in the market and
economic conditions brought on by the COVID-19
pandemic. Accordingly, we identified this as a key audit
matter.

The Group determined that the water environment
management segment was accounted for as a collective
CGU for the purpose of impairment testing. The
impairment assessment was determined using a value-in-
use model based on the discounted cash flows projection.
Assumptions such as estimated key financial data, the
growth rate and discount rate used to determine the

discounted cash flows required significant judgements |

by the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the goodwill carried in the
Group's  financial  statements amounted to
HK$1,531,576,000. Disclosures of goodwill are
included in notes 2.5, 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of the CGU.

We assessed the appropriateness of the discount rate
used by assessing the cost of capital of the Company
and comparable organisations in the industry, and
where relevant, using our internal valuation
specialists to independently develop expectations for
the discount rate, and comparing the independent
expectations to those used by management.

We reviewed the cash flows forecasts by comparing
them to recent and past performance, taking into
consideration the approach used in the valuation. We
tested the reasonableness of key assumptions used in
the cash flows forecast, which include growth rate,
discount rate and long-term growth rate, and taking
into account management's consideration of the
potential impact that COVID-19 pandemic has on the
Group's operations.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the financial statements on the impairment
assessment, specifically on the key assumptions that
have the most significant effect on the determination
of the recoverable amount of the goodwill.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globa! Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

] Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lai Wan Fung, Jacky.

S

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
29 April 2022

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIV
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Year ended 31 December 2021 T HRAT § )
&\u’x}t?
Notes 2021
HK$'000
REVENUE 5 6,912,371
Direct costs and operating expenses (4,110,782)
Gross profit 2,801,589
Other income and gains/(losses), net 6 ( 22492)
Administrative and other operating expenses ( 671,142)
Finance income 7 21,999
Finance costs 7 ( 435,302)
Share of profits and losses of associates ( 6,758)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 1,687,894
Income tax 9 ( 404,908)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,282,986
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of
functional currency to presentation currency 507,007
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX 507,007
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,789,993

2020
HK$'000

5,663,292

(3,462,756)

2,200,536

53,068
( 441,554)

15,807
( 348,795)

4,224

1,483,286

( 396,922)

1,086,364

956,424

956,424

2,042,788

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED ERGHT 1

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCO

Year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company 1,200,329 1,024,271
Non-controlling interests 82,657 62,093
1,282,986 1,086,364
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company 1,673,707 1,927,449
Non-controlling interests 116,286 115,339
1,789,993 2,042,788
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 11
- Basic and diluted HK41.96 cents HK35.80 cents




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSVION
! 4 [ 1

31 December 2021

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interests in associates
Contract assets

Other receivables
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Contract assets

Other financial assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Tax payable

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

(

e

Notes

12
14(a)
13

15
16
17
18
20
21
26

18
21
19
20
22

23
24

14(b)

N\ Py
‘\‘.“‘:_H ————— i

2021 2020
HK$'000 HKS$'000
1,043,532 152,855
104,372 16,285
12,468 12,082
1,160,372 181,222
2,280,920 1,380,919
1,531,576 1,295,475
231 8,143
19,750,324 17,348,620
771,809 289,902
36,122 443,198
6,127 -
25,537,481 21,447,479
1,990,466 1,681,187
222,880 -
70,189 93,641
2,866,254 1,965,697
2,281,986 1,719,530
7,431,775 5,460,055
3,215,673 2,540,938
3,392,028 2,246,673
78,274 69,029
5,234 8,388
6,691,209 4,865,028
740,566 595,027
26,278,047 22,042,506

continued/. ..



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED /&gﬁ(ﬁﬁ%ﬁqf _.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (ot 7k 4 )
I~

\& AR L)
31 December 2021 ' "\;@Q ¥ 0_3}}-,;'-‘
Notes 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 24 11,049,910 8,831,460
Deferred tax liabilities 26 2,063,737 1,801,819
Lease liabilities 14(b 1,168 B 3,368
Total non-current liabilities 13,114,815 10,636,647
NET ASSETS 13,163,232 11,405,859
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 27 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 28 9,009,206 7,673,416
11,870,083 10,534,293
Non-controlling interests 1,293,149 871,566
TOTAL EQUITY 13,163,232 11,405,859
4/
\G/ \ ;A
CF> = T d ‘J(}/ ™
............................................ :........................ ----oqu;i'--..- ..(' evnnen ....,{......- --.....)........-......
| | G
Director Direé\}-.;r )
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS /. —~,
{l \
Year ended 31 December 2021 N\ P

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of contract assets
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profits and losses of associates
Gain from disposal of an associate
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net
Provision for impairment of other receivables
Provision for impairment of contract assets
Fair value adjustment of contingent consideration
receivable
Fair value changes of other financial assets, net
Dividend received from other financial assets
Effect on foreign exchange rates changes, net

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in contract assets

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
People's Republic of China ("PRC") income tax paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities

13

o0 S0 00 ON ~N S NS\ OO0 0000

[=a W= A~}

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,687,894 1,483,286
50,297 16,633
12,616 10,129
59,126 72,536
7,129 406
3,217 -
33,045 -
435,302 348,795
{ 21,999) ( 15,807
6,758 (4,224
( 2) -
101,981 25,492
16,451 3,342
3,533 12,695
- 7,814
57,615 47,746
- ( 1,929)
26,837 ( 25,021
2,479,800 1,981,893
34,252 ( 50,201)
(2,324,253) (2,327,398)
( 784,941) ( 635,243)
125,605 ( 83,802)
( 469,537) (1,114,751)
{ 199,604) ( 207,594)
( 669,141) (1,322,345)
continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (c;iﬁé('v@—\x.\
Year ended 31 December 2021 \:\_\\\_,,./) |
Notes 2021 2020
HK$'000 HKS$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 21,999 15,807
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 29 ( 794,616) -
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment ( 29,744) ( 18,478)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 709 14
Payment for additions of intangible assets ( 482,210) ( 164,513)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from an associate 8,201 ( 733)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate 1,222 -
Decrease in other financial assets 137,577 -
Dividend received from other financial assets - 1,929
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,136,862) ( 165,974)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of asset-backed securities
("ABS"), net of related expenses paid 25 - 320,426
Proceeds from the issuance of medium-term notes
("MTN"), net of related expenses paid 25 1,199,392 1,120,135
Proceeds from the issuance of super and short-term
commercial papers ("SCP"), net of related expenses paid 25 962,320 -
New bank loans 5,660,898 2,665,730
Repayment of corporate bonds ( 14,615 ( 337,290)
Repayment of ABS ( 64,354) ( 41,599)
Repayment of SCP ( 962,320) -
Repayment of bank loans (3,706,012) (2,164,948)
Interest paid 31(a) ( 380,488) ( 334,334)
Principal elements of lease payments ( 10,128) ( 9,605
Interest elements of lease payments ( 456) ( 797)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 15,750 7,037
Acquisition of a non-controlling interest 30 - ( 28,990)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ( 338,546) ( 214,002)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries ( 43,956) -
Capital contributions from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 31(a) 4,223 51,859
Net cash flows from financing activities 2,321,708 1,033,622
continued/...
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

—

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (c%@d NP

Year ended 31 December 2021 N>
Notes 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 515,705 { 454,697)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,702,855 2,052,250
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and
cash equivalents, net 62,441 105,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF YEAR 2,281,001 1,702,855
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position 22 2,281,986 1,719,530
Less: Pledged bank deposits 22 ( 985) ( 16,675)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 2,281,001 1,702,855
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

2.1

22

D e

Y,

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFOMA’HON ) )

China Everbright Water Limited (the "C ompany™). is &-limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and is dual primary listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and the Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered address
of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is located at 26th Floor, Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan
Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC 518000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company's subsidiaries are
primarily involved in the water environment management business in the PRC.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China Everbright Water Holdings Limited
("CEWHL"), a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"). Inthe
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the Company is China Investment
Corporation, an entity established in the PRC.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are not statutory financial statements and are prepared solely, at the
request of management, for the purpose of issuance of corporate bonds to institutional investors in
the national inter-bank bond market of the PRC.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") which have
been measured at fair value.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi ("RMB"). These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"), which is the Company's presentation currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group™) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

16



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

22

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

23

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are deait with through the normal requirements of
HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity's financial instruments and risk management strategy.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
The Group intends to use the practical expedients in the future periods if they become
applicable.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply
lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change, (ii) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts>$
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’>
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Usée®
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples

Vi W N e

2018-2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group's-investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession emen
The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with the local government
authorities in the PRC (the "Grantors").

Under these service concession arrangements:

. the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and
° the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant

residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, or the
infrastructure is used for its entire useful life under the arrangements, or both the Group's
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use of
the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout the period of the arrangements.

The Group's infrastructure includes leasehold land, buildings, plant and machinery that are acquired

from the Grantors and/or are derecognised by the Group when the directors of the Company
consider that the significant risks and rewards of these assets have been passed to the Grantors.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)
Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of
the grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the
Group for the right to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an
unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a)
specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the
Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified requirements. The financial asset (receivable
under service concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
"Financial assets and liabilities" below.

An intangible asset (concession right) is recognised to the extent that the Group receives a right to
charge users of the public service. The intangible asset (concession right) is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible
asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognised initially
at the fair value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue relating to construction services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition" below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition" below.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and certain equity investments and wealth
management products at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Whete an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, construction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the

period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that persen
6] has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of 2 parent of the
Group;

or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
@) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

\2) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  aperson identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property. plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.5% 10 4%
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and fixtures 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles and office

equipment 12.5% to 25%

‘Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.”

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investment properties

Tnvestment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Concession rights 20 to 32 years
Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Backlog contracts 3 years
Customer relationships 5 years

The useful life of the patents and trademarks of the Group is determined based on the shorter of their
statutory validity periods and the expected benefit periods.

The useful life of the customer relationships of the Group is determined based on the expected
benefit periods with reference to the historical customer attrition rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new water environment technologies is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Water
environment technologies development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange -
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

@) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie, the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

Land and buildings 2 to 40 years
Equipment and others 2 to 3 years

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

27



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or arate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or &
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of comprehensive
income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

®

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("OCI"), and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are "solely payments of principal and
interest" on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business mode! determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Financial instruments (continued)

(®

Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required fo be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on equity investments are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at FVPL. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the FVPL category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred conirol of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Finan

cial instruments (continued)

Q)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewatds of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans
and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all loans
and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL using a forward-looking ECL approach.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate ("EIR").

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has applied the standard's simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Other receivables are assessed for impairment based on 12-month ECLs: 12-month ECLs are the
portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the asset is less than 12 months). However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payment are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

Offisetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and consumables used in the repairs and maintenance of
the waste water treatment plants, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. When inventories are consumed,
the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short-term deposits and short-term balances in
financial institutions with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, restricted bank balances are excluded
whilst bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included in cash and cash equivalents.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future

period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs,
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual

instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group has satisfied a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

(a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs

(b) The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced

(c) The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

When the Group provides more than one service in a service concession arrangement, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation by reference to their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending
on the availability of observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it is significant.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Construction service revenue

The Group's performance in respect of construction services creates or enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue from construction service over time, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the surveyors' assessment of work
performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a service concession agreement is estimated on a cost-
plus basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margin at the date of the agreement
applicable to similar construction services rendered.

Operation revenue

The Group recognises revenue from environmental water project operation services when the related
services are rendered. The operation revenue from reusable water supply service is recognised at a
point in time when the Group has delivered water to the customer; the customer has accepted the
water; the Group has the present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
The other operation revenue from service concession arrangements is recognised over the period of
time that the services are rendered and the benefits are received and consumed simultaneously by the
customers.

Finance and interest income

Finance and interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the EIR method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration from
the customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the
customer. The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining
rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance obligation. Conversely, the contract isa
liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer within contract
assets if the Group expects to recover those costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits - pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees'
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company's memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is RMB. These financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company's presentation currency. The Company has used HKS$ as its presentation
currency to be consistent with that of CEWHL. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax
charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company, certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are
currencies other than the HK$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and ligbilities of
these entities are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of comprehensive income are translated into HKS$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of the Company, certain
overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated into HKS$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these entities which arise throughout the year
are translated into HKS$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Service concession arrangements
The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer ("TOT") and
Build-Operate-Own ("BOO") atrangements in respect of its environmental water projects.

The Group has concluded that all the BOT and TOT arrangements and certain BOO arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12 Service Concession
Arrangements ("HK(IFRIC)-Int 12"), because the Iocal government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreements, the
infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure for
BOO arrangements is used in the service concession arrangements for its entire or substantially
entire useful life.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Contract assets and/or intangible assets under HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction
services as a contract asset and/or an intangible asset under a service concession arrangement.
However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a contract asset and partly by
an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately for each component of the operator's
consideration. The consideration received or receivable for both components shall be recognised
initially at the fair value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service concession arrangement between the contract
asset component and the intangible asset component, if any, requires the Group to make an estimate
of a number of factors, which include, inter alia, fair value of the construction services, expected
future water treatment volume of the relevant water treatment plant over its service concession
period, future guaranteed receipts and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. These estimates, including revenue
recognition under the contract asset and intangible asset components are determined by the Group's
management based on their experience and assessment on current and future market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the intangible assets ("concession rights") and contract assets at the end of
reporting period are disclosed in notes 15 and 18 to the financial statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) are disclosed in notes 12 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets

The impairment loss in respect of contract assets, trade and other receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of contract assets, trade and other receivables
and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 18, 20 and 22 to the financial statements.

Revenue recognition for construction work :

The Group recognises contract revenue over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting date. The progress is measured based on
the Group's effort or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for each performance obligation in the contract. Significant
assumptions are required to estimate the recoverable variation works that will affect the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates in each construction contract as the contract progresses.

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements for "Business
combinations and goodwill", goodwill is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impajrment assessment, which requires significant judgement. The Group determined that the group
of cash-generating units to which goodwill was allocated reflected the lowest level at which
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting and was not larger than an operating segment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment losses for goodwill (continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This involves an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at the reporting date is
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income and other taxes and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Company’s management and the board of directors for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and
expense, interest-bearing borrowings and related expenses and income and deferred taxes. The
Group operates in a single business segment which is the water environment management business
in the PRC. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
operating segment.

Business segment

The Group had only one operating segment for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
namely the water environment management business, the details of which are set out below:

° Water environment management - Engagement in municipal waste water treatment,
industrial waste water treatment, water supply, reusable water, sludge treatment and
disposal, sponge city construction, river-basin ecological restoration, waste water source
heat pump, leachate treatment, research and development ("R&D") of water environment
technologies and engineering construction.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

Mainland China
Germany

The revenue information above is based on the locations at which the services were

provided.

(b) Non-current assets

Mainland China
Hong Kong
Singapore
Germany

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of the assets and

excludes other financial assets.

Major customers

Customer 1**
Customer 2**
Customer 3**

did not account for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for that year.

e The customers are local government authorities.
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2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
6,907,083 5,661,365
5,288 1,927
6,912,371 5,663,292
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
25,497,214 20,997,841
1,646 5,647
2,237 434

262 359
25,501,359 21,004,281
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
811,907 588,419
709,115 1,136,798
N/A* 727,410

The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed as the revenue individually
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5. REVENUE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

Construction service revenue from service
concession arrangements 3,098,448 2,794,395
Finance income from service concession arrangements 1,068,040 905,676
Operation income from service concession arrangements 2,522,688 1,825,176
Construction contract revenue and technical service income 223,195 138,045
6,912,371 5,663,292

Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time 127,607 103,376
Over time 5,716,724 4,654,240
5,844,331 4,757,616
Finance income from service concession atrangements 1,068,040 905,676
6,912,371 5,663,292

The aggregated amount of construction service revenue, finance income and operation income
derived from the local government authorities in the PRC amounted to HK$6,608,774,000 (2020:
HK$5,459,209,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021. Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from these customers are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Included in the revenue recognised in the year ended 31 December 2021, HK$8,205,000 (2020:
HK$$23,602,000) were related to performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unsatisfied performance obligations related to service
concession arrangements:
Expected to be recognised within one year 6,030,603 7,190,232
Expected to be recognised after one year 104,599,3_831 48,983,828
Total transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations 110,629,986 56,174,060
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5. REVENUE (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient under HKFRS 15 and does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfied the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with an original expected duration of one year or less.

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), NET
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Government grants* 50,011 44,947
Value-added tax ("VAT") refunds** 9,324 44,762
Fair value adjustment of contingent consideration
receivable - ( 7,814)
Fair value gains/(losses), net:
Other financial assets - unlisted investments (58,583) (48,629)
Other financial assets - unlisted equity investments 968 883
Dividend received from other financial assets - 1,929
Gain from disposal of an associate 2 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ( 3,217) -
Loss on disposal of contract assets (33,045) -
Sundry income 12,048 16,990
(22,492) 53,068
* Government grants of HK$50,011,000 (2020: HK$44,947,000) were granted during the year

ended 31 December 2021 to subsidise certain waste water treatment plants of the Group in
the PRC. The receipt of such grants is not subject to any unfulfilled conditions or any other
contingencies. There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grants in
the future.

* VAT refunds of HK$9,324,000 (2020: HK$44,762,000) were received/receivable during the
year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to the Group's certain environmental water
projects in operation in the PRC. The receipt of such tax refunds is not subject to any
unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies. There is no assurance that the Group will
continue to receive such tax refunds in the future.
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7. NET FINANCE COSTS

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Finance income
Interest income on:
Bank deposits 21,289 15,141
Amounts due from an associate 710 66_6
21,999 15,807
Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Bank loans (226,603) (212,682)
Corporate bonds, ABS, MTN and SCP (208,243) (135,316)
Lease liabilities (  456) ( 797
(435,302) (348,795)
Net finance costs (413,303) (332,988)
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes 2021 2020
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Depreciation*
- property, plant and equipment 12 50,297 16,633
- right-of-use assets 14(a) 12,616 10,129
Amortisation of intangible assets* 15 59,126 72,536
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,129 406
Cost of construction services from service concession
arrangements** 2,331,530 2,113,912
R&D costs 50,097 47,982
Rental expenses from short-term leases 2,835 3,593
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net 20 101,981 25,492
Provision for impairment of other receivables 20 16,451 3,342
Provision for impairment of contract assets 18 3,533 12,695
Foreign exchange differences, net 3,691 ( 7,072)
Employee benefit expense
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 394,917 269,711
Retirement scheme contributions 124,512 55,229
519,429 324,940
Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit services 3,380 3,000
- Other services 1,620 2,663

Amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation and employee benefit expense in total of
HK$309,036,000 (2020: HK$232,419,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
included in "Direct costs and operating expenses" in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

** Included in "Direct costs and operating expenses" in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the retirement schemes in future years (2020: Nil).
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9. INCOME TAX

No provision for Singapore or Hong Kong income tax was made as the Group did not earn any
income subject to Singapore or Hong Kong income tax during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate of 25% based on the assessable profits in
accordance with the tax rules and regulations in the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2021, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% pursuant
to the relevant tax rules and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Group were subject to tax at half of the foregoing statutory rate or fully exempted
from income tax pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Current - PRC:
Charge for the year 220,030 205,721
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years ( 16,766) 1,568
Deferred (note 26) 201,644 189,633
Total tax expense for the year 404,908 396,922

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before tax 1,687,894 1,483,286

Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% 421,974 370,822
Tax concession ( 215,059) ( 163,485)

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods ( 16,766) 1,568
Profits and losses attributable to associates 1,689 ( 1,056)
Income not subject to tax (¢ 959 ( 15844

Expenses not deductible for tax 128,743 141,945

Tax losses not recognised 11,188 18,823
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ( 6,436) { 9429

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 89,166 53,578
Tax expense at the Group's effective rate 404,908 396,922
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10.

11.

DIVIDENDS

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

Dividends for the financial year:
Interim - HK$0.0575 (equivalent to
Singapore dollars ("SGD") 0.0101)
(2020: HK$0.0374 (equivalent to SGD 0.0067))
per ordinary share 164,651 106,964

Proposed final - HK$0.0683 (equivalent to
SGD0.0119) (2020: HK$0.0607 (equivalent
to SGD0.0104)) per ordinary share 195,448 173,266

360,099 280,230

Final dividend for the previous financial year
which was paid during the financial year -
HK$0.0607 (equivalent to SGD0.0104)
(2020: HK$0.0374 (equivalent to SGD0.0067))
per ordinary share 173,266 106,645

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on the Group's profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,200,3 29,000 (2020: HK$1,024,271,000)
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company of approximately
2,860,877,000 (2020: approximately 2,860,877,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improve- Motor
ments, vehicles
Plant and furniture and office Construction
Buildings machinery and fixtures  equipment  in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
31 December 2021
Cost:
At 1 January 2021 110,600 55,236 13,106 93,074 - 272,016
Additions - 11,037 3,281 11,174 4,252 29,744
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 29) 594,801 294,925 - 420 8,455 898,601
Disposals - ( 1,261) ( 253) (10,234) - ( 11,748)
Exchange realignment 14,357 7,201 393 2,756 220 24,927
At 31 December 2021 719,758 367,138 16,527 97,190 12,927 1,213,540
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2021 38,143 20,494 9,428 51,096 - 119,161
Charge for the year 19,227 19,568 1,462 10,040 - 50,297
Disposals - ( 1) ( 229) ( 3,680) - 3910)
Exchange realignment 1,504 970 249 1,737 - 4,460
At 31 December 2021 58,874 41,031 10,910 59,193 - 170,008
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 660,884 326,107 5,617 37,997 12,927 1,043,532
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Leasehold Motor
improvements, vehicles
Plant and furniture  and office
Buildings machinery and fixtures  equipment Total
HX$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
31 December 2020
Cost:
At 1 January 2020 103,553 49,544 12,066 80,719 245,882
Additions - 2,206 679 15,593 18,478
Disposals - ( 5) ( 321) (9,060) { 9,386)
Exchange realignment 7,047 3,491 682 5,822 17,042
At 31 December 2020 110,600 55,236 13,106 93,074 272,016
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2020 31,220 17,055 8,035 47,828 104,138
Charge for the year 4,600 2,164 1,253 8,616 16,633
Disposals - ( 2) ( 305 ( 8,660) ( 8,967)
Exchange realignment 2,323 1,277 445 3,312 7,357
At 31 December 2020 38,143 20,494 9,428 51,096 119,161
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2020 72,457 34,742 3,678 41,978 152,855

The property ownership certificates of certain buildings of the Group in the PRC (the "Buildings")
with an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$19,536,000 (2020: HK$20,296,000) as at 31 December
2021 have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, pursuant to the relevant agreements signed with the local government authorities in the
PRC and based on the advice from the Company's PRC legal adviser, Zhong Lun Law Firm, the
Group has the proper legal rights to occupy and use the Buildings.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at 1 January
Additions
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

The directors of the Company have determined that the Group's investment properties are

2021
HK$'000

12,082

386

12,468

2020
HK$'000

3,138
8,287
657

12082

commercial investment properties based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuation
performed by management, at HK$12,468,000.

The investment properties are leased or will be leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 14 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment

properties:

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment properties

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment property

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 12,468 12,468
Fair value measurement
—asat3] December 2020 using
Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 12,082 12,082
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation of
investment properties together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
Commercial Discounted cash Estimated rental RMBI196per 5% (2020: 5%) increase
investment flow method value square meter (decrease) in
property annually (2020: estimated rental value

RMB208 per  would result in
square meter increase (decrease)
annually) in fair value by
HK$76,000
(2020: HK$105,000)

Rent growth 5% 1% (2020: 1%) increase
(2020: 5%) (decrease) in rent

growth would result
in increase in fair value
by HK$141,000
(2020: HK$215,000) or
decrease in fair value
by HK$127,000
(2020: HK$191,000)

Discount rate 3% 1% (2020: 1%) increase
(2020: 3%) (decrease) in

discount rate would
result in decrease in
fair value by
HK$260,000
(2020: HK$333,000) or
increase in fair value
by HK$311,000
(2020: HK$402,000)

Commercial Market Estimated sales RMB4,984 per 5% (2020: 5%) increase
investment comparison price square meter (decrease) in estimated
property approach (2020: sales price would result

RMBS5,228 per  in increase (decrease)
square meter)  in fair value by
HK$450,000
(2020: HK$437,000)
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset's life including an exit or terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived
discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by
events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Under market comparison approach, fair value of investment properties is determined by reference
to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's buildings compared to the recent sales
and the timing on the comparable transactions. Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transaction will result in higher fair value
measurement.
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14.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings, equipment and others used in
its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the land lease from the owners
with lease terms of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of buildings, equipment and others generaily have lease terms between 2 and 3 years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and movements during the year are

as follows:

At 1 January 2020

Additions

Depreciation charge

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29)
Disposals

Depreciation charge

Write-back on disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2021
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Prepaid
land lease
payments  Buildings
HK$'000 HKS$'000
4910 20,487
- 9
( 339) (9547
316 397
4,887 11,346
- 4,640
94,143 -
- ( 4,134)
( 2,683) ( 9,876)
- 4,134
1,799 121
98,141 6,231

Equipment
and others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000
212 25,609
77 86
(243) (10,129)
6 719
52 16,285
- 4,640
- 94,143
- ( 4,134
(52) (12,616)
- 4,134
- 1,920
- 104,372
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31 December 2021

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
b Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and movements during the year are as

follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at 1 January 11,756 20,913
New leases 4,640 86
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 456 797
Payments (10,584) (10,402)
Exchange realignment 134 362
Carrying amount at 31 December 6,402 11,756
Analysed into:
Current portion 5,234 8,388
Non-current portion _ 1,168 3,368
Carrying amount at 31 December 6,402 11,756
(© The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as below:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 7) 456 797
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 12,616 10,129
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in "Administrative and other
operating expenses™) 2,835 3,593
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 15,907 14,519

@) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to the financial statements.
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its investment properties (note 13), consisting of one commercial

investment property in the PRC. The shop had been rented out for a period of 6 years from 1
November 2019 under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the lease generally require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$168,000 (2020:

HKS$41,000).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in future periods

under non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant are as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
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2021

HK$'000

555
734

1,289

2020
HK$'000

95
363
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Concession ~ Patents and Computer  Customer
rights trademarks software relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
31 December 2021
Cost:
At 1 January 2021 2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
Additions 481,666 - 544 - 482,210
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29) - - 28 - 28
Disposal ( 123,604) - - - ( 123,604)
Write-off - - ( 1,570) - (1,570
Exchange realignment 77,867 823 311 421 79,422
At 31 December 2021 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2021 391,170 25,795 3,990 6,428 427,383
Amortisation provided during the year 54,678 - 1,596 2,852 59,126
Disposal ( 37,026) - - - ( 37,026)
Write-off - - ( 1,570) - ( L570)
Exchange realignment 14,755 823 128 249 15,955
At 31 December 2021 423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 2,271,433 - 5,404 4,083 2,280,920
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15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

31 December 2020

Cost:
At 1 January 2020
Additions
Write-off
Exchange realignment
At 31 December 2020

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2020

Amortisation provided
during the year

Write-off

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2020

Concession Patents snd Computer Backlog Customer
rights trademarks software contracts relationships Total
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
1,955,202 24,151 7,194 28,390 12,350 2,027,287
162,091 - 2,422 - - 164,513
- - - (28,782) - ( 28,782)
141,788 1,644 619 392 841 145,284
2,259,081 25,795 10,235 - 13,191 2,308,302
313,370 20,394 2,991 28,390 3,705 368,850
65,627 4,067 755 - 2,087 72,536
- - - (28,782) - ( 28,782)
12,173 1,334 244 392 636 14,779
391,170 25,795 3,990 - 6,428 427,383
1,867,911 - 6,245 - 6,763 1,880,919

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,786,528,000 (2020: HK$3,627,759,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

Included in "Concession rights" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are contract assets of
HK$1,317,479,000 (2020: HK$802,437,000) arising from performance under construction contracts
in connection with service concession arrangements.
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16.

GOODWILL
2021 2020
HK§'000 HK$'000
Cost and net carrying amount at the beginning of the year 1,295,475 1,213,509
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29) 191,633 -
Exchange realignment 44,468 81,966
Cost and net carrying amount at the end of the year 1,531,576 1,295,475

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from

combining operations of the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the water environment
management segment.

The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units within the water environment
management segment was determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period using a growth rate of 3% to 10%
(2020: 3% to 10%) approved by management. The pre~tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 11.1% (2020: 11.2%), and cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%). Management determined the budgets based on service
concession arrangements governing the relevant operations. Based on the assessment, no
impairment provision was necessary as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 231 8,143
Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name capital and business to the Group activities
2021 2020
Qingdao Haibohe Water Paid up PRC/ 49 49 Waste water
Operating Limited capital of United Mainland treatment
("Qingdao Haibohe") States dollars China
("US$") 350,845
Hebei Xiong'an Huashen Paid up PRC/ - 20 R&D and
Water Engineering capital of Mainland consultation on
Technology Limited RMB5,000,000 China water treatrment
("Hebei Xiong'an")
(note)
Note:

Hebei Xiong'an was established with three other entities established in the PRC, in Xiong'an City, the
PRC, which enables the Group to further develop R&D and construction services in Xiong'an City.

The Group had significant influence, but not control or joint control, over Hebei Xiong'an, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions, pursuant to the Articles of Association of
Hebei Xiong'an. Accordingly, Hebei Xiong'an was classified as an associate of the Group.

The Group had completed the disposal of equity interest in Hebei Xiong'an on 10 December 2021, and
Hebei Xiong'an was no longer an associate of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the above investments were held by the Company's subsidiaries.
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17.

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's associates that are

not individually material:

2021 2020
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Share of the associates' profits/(losses) for the year (6,758) 4,224
Share of the associates' total comprehensive income/(loss) (6,692) 4,555
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's investments in
the associates 231 8,143
CONTRACT ASSETS
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Service concession assets (@) 19,766,155 17,360,815 14,144,440
Less: Impairment (c) ( 15831 ( 12,195 -
19,750,324 17,348,620 14,144,440
Current
Service concession assets (2) 1,949,143 1,679,084 1,360,370
Less: Impairment (c) ( 1,561) ( 1,179) -
1,947,582 1,677,905 1,360,370
Other contract assets (b) 42,884 3,282 28,835
1,990,466 1,681,187 1,389,205
Total 21,740,790 19,029,807 15,533,645
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18.  CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

()

(b)

©

Included in "Service concession assets" as at 31 December 2021 are amounts of
HK$534,155,000 (2020: HK$549,290,000) and HK$822,617,000 (2020: HKX$789,747,000)
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary and a
related company of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.

Service concession assets as at 31 December 2021 totalling HK$21,715,298,000 (2020:
HK$19,039,899,000) bear interest at rates ranging from 4.90% to 7.83% (2020: 4.90% to
7.83%) per annum. As at 31 December 2021, HK$11,218,763,000 (2020: HK$8,677,273,000)
related to the service concession arrangements with operation commenced. The amounts for
the service concession arrangements are not yet due for payment and will be settled by
revenue to be generated during the operating periods of the service concession arrangements.
Amounts billed will be transferred to trade receivables (note 20).

The balance comprised contract assets arising from performance under construction
management service contracts. Such contracts include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the service periods once milestones are reached.

Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, HK$17,392,000 (2020: HK$13,374,000) was recognised as an
allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and credit
policy with customers are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

The movements in the provision for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 13,374 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 3,533 12,695
Exchange realignment 485 679
At the end of the year 17,392 13,374

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using the probability of default
approach to measure expected credit losses. The probabilities of default rates are estimated
based on comparable entities with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forward-looking credit risk information. Asat31 December 2021, the probability of default
applied ranging from 0.05% to 0.16% (2020: 0.06% to 0.08%) and the loss given default was
estimated ranging from 57.65% to 64.87% (2020: 62.47% to 64.87%).
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18.

19.

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,786,528,000 (2020: HK$3,627,759,000 ) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

INVENTORIES
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials and consumables 70,189 93,641

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit or loss is
as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount of inventories consumed 946,643 831,595
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20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Non-current
Other receivables
Less: Impairment

VAT receivables
Prepayments

Current
Trade receivables
Less: Impairment

Other receivables and sundry deposits
Less: Impairment

* VAT receivables

Amounts due from an associate
Prepayments

Total

2021
HK$'000

333,489

( 6967)

326,522

417,859

27,428

771,809

2,548,697

( 252,045)

2,296,652

103,817

( 13,383)

90,434

192,277
9,843

277,048
2,866,254

3,638,063

2020
HK$'000

4,578

4,578

285,324

289,902

1,365,321

( 97.246)

1,268,075

355,727

( 3,521

352,206

141,426
17,614

186,376
1,965,697

2,255,599

The amounts due from an associate are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-bearing at a

rate of 4.75% (2020: 4.75%) per annum.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables are as follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 07,246 65,902
Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 149,289 25,492
Impairment loss reversed (note 8) ( 47,308) -
Reversal of previous write-off of impairment loss 47,308 -
Exchange realignment 5,510 5,852
At the end of the year 252,045 97,246

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of other receivables are as follows:

2021 2020

HKS$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 3,521 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 16,451 3,342
Exchange realignment 378 179
At the end of the year 20,350 3,521

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Trade receivables mainly
represent revenue from the provision of operation services and the billed amounts of the contract
assets. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach for providing impairment for ECLs prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The ECLs below also incorporate forward looking information. The impairment

was determined as follows:

31 December 2021:

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)
Impairment (HK$'000)

31 December 2020:

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)
Impairment (HK$'000)

Past due

more than

Past due 1 year but

within within

Current 1 year 2 years

2.6% 4.6% 14.9%

800,331 1,173,035 379,138
21,120 54,386 56,496"

1.2% 3. 7% 17.6%

555,451 581,236 102,629
6,740 21,740 18,0327

Past due
over
2 years Total
61.2% 9.9%

196,193 2,548,697
120,043* 252,045

40.3% 7.1%
126,005 1,365,321
50,734* 97,246

n~ The impairment included an amount of HK$14,257,000 (2020: HK$6,978,000) made for specific trade
receivables which were considered in default due to indicators which showed that the Group was
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

* The impairment included an amount of HK$114,275,000 (2020: HK$39,383,000) made for specific
trade receivables which were considered in default due to indicators which showed that the Group was
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

Included in "Trade and other receivables” of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are trade receivables
of HK$2,296,652,000 (2020: HK$1,268,075,000), of which (a) HK$11,657,000 (2020:
HK$25,068,000) are due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, (b)
HK$14,211,000 (2020: HK$13,596,000) are due from a related company of a non wholly-owned

subsidiary, and (c) nil (2020: HK$61,525,000) are due from a fellow subsidiary.

Included in "Other receivables" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 were government
compensation receivables of HK$308,020,000 (2020: Nil) arising from the disposals of service
concession arrangement-related intangible assets and confract assets in connection to relocation and
expansion of waste water treatment plants of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited, for which
impairment of HK$6,967,000 (2020: Nil) was provided as at 31 December 2021. The amount will

be settled before 31 December 2024.
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20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in "Other receivables and sundry deposits" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
government compensation receivables of HK$19,381,000 (2020: HK$17,238,000) arising from
compensation of sludge disposal cost as stipulated in the concession service agreement of Everbright
Water (Beijing) Limited.

Included in "Other receivables and sundry deposits" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
consideration receivables of HK$8,095,000 (2020: HK$11,043,000) due from third parties arising
from the disposals of service concession rights held by Sugian City Cheng Bei Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd. and Sugian City Cheng Bei Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. years ago, for which impairment of
HK$2,382,000 (2020: HK$3,521,000) was provided as at 31 December 2021. The ageing of which
is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current 7,297 10,270
Past due over 2 years 798 773
8,095 11,043

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,786,528,000 (2020: HK$3,627,759,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 24, 25 and 32 to the financial statements.

All the current portions of the above balances are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2021 2020
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Unlisted investments, at fair value (note) 222,880 409,147
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 36,122 34,051
Total 259,002 443,198
Less: Non-current portion { 36,122) (443,198)
Current portion 222,880 -
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21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products issued by financial institutions in
Hong Kong and the above unlisted equity investment represents the 6% interest in Yancheng CCCC
Shanghai Dredging Water Environment Investment Co., Ltd. They were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest.

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, the wealth management products are available for redemption at the
option of the Group after the expiry of the applicable lock-up period.

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash on hand and bank balances 2,281,001 1,702,855
Pledged bank deposits 985 16,675
2,281,986 1,719,530

As at 31 December 2021, the pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks for the issuance of
guarantees by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific performance duties by the Group
under certain services concession agreements.

Included in "Cash and cash equivalents" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are deposits of
HK$199,771,000 (2020: HK$253,470,000) placed with a related party bank, which is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$2,248,575,000 (2020: HK$1,675,469,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2021, cash at banks of the Group were considered to be of low credit risk, and

thus the Group has assessed that the ECL for cash at banks is immaterial under the 12-month
expected losses method.
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23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 2,307,616 1,796,446

Dividend payable to a non-controlling shareholder of
a non wholly-owned subsidiary - 17,025
Interest payable 125,637 85,745
Payable for acquisition 10,023 9,713
VAT and other tax payables 30,977 23,103
Other creditors and accrued expenses 741,420 608,906
Total 3,215,673 2,540,938

Trade payables totalling HK$1,742,243,000 (2020: HK$1,085,901,000) as at 31 December 2021
represent construction payables for the Group's BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements. The
construction payables are not yet due for payment.

Included in "Trade payables" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are trade payables of
HK$80,889,000 (2020: HK$1,355,000) due to non-controlling shareholders of non wholly-owned
subsidiaries, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms similar to those offered
by the non-controlling shareholders to their major customers.

Included in "Trade payables” of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are trade payables of
HK$12,970,000 (2020: HK$6,962,000) due to an associate, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered by the associate to its major customers.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses” of the Group as at 31 December 2021 is a
guarantee deposit of HK$14,102,000 (2020: HK$14,148,000) from a former director of a subsidiary.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are other
payables of HK$228,468,000 (2020: Nil) due to a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary, which are unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates announced by the People's Bank
of China and repayable on demand.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses" of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are other

payables of HK$20,508,000 (2020: Nil) due to an associate, which are payment of performance
appraisal awards and VAT tax refunds on behalf of local government.
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24.

BORROWINGS

2021
Maturity ~ HK$000

Non-current

Bank loans - secured 2023 - 2039 1,952,995
Bank loans - unsecured 2023 - 2037 5,522,513
Bonds payable - secured (note 25) 2023 168,679
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25) 2023 - 2024 3,405,723
11,049,910
Current
Bank loans - secured 2022 316,454
Bank loans - unsecured 2022 1,299,777
Bonds payable - secured (note 25) 2022 69,060
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25) 2022 1,706,737
3,392,028
14,441,938
Analysed into:
Borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive
Beyond five years

Maturity

2022 - 2039
2022 - 2037
2022 - 2023
2022 - 2023

2021
2021
2021
2021

2021
HK$'000

3,392,028
4,310,110
4,437,097

2,302,703

14,441,938
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2020
HK$'000

1,427,715
4,334,917

230,385
2,838,443

8,831,460

153,857
1,087,316
63,371
942,129

2,246,673
11,078,133

2020
HK$'000

2,246,673
2,806,017
4,209,549
1,815,894

11,078,133
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24.

BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by certain revenue,
contract assets, receivables and intangible assets in connection with the Group's service concession
arrangements and the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to HK$4,308,051,000 (2020: HK$3,193,828,000), were utilised to the extent of
HK$2,269,449,000 (2020: HK$1,581,572,000) at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the unsecured banking facilities, amounting to HK$11,047,629,000 (2020:
HK$9,572,153,000), were utilised to the extent of HK$6,822,290,000 (2020: HK$5,422,233,000).
Among the unsecured banking facilities of the Group, HK$996,964,000 (2020: HK$995,3 84,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent of HK$696,964,000 (2020:
HK$695,384,000) as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, banking facilities of HK$8,368,757,000 (2020: HK$7,948,884,000) are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. At 31
December 2021, such facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$6,285,589,000 (2020:
HK$5,227,683,000). The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Certain
banking facilities also restrict some of the Company's subsidiaries from declaring or paying
dividends to shareholders without obtaining prior written approval of the banks or require the Group
to process waste water treatment operating fee via respective financial institutions. Further details
of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank loans of HK$9,091,739,000 (2020: HK$7,003,805,000)
bear interest at variable rates ranging from 1.29% to 4.90% (2020: 1.21% to 4.66%) per annum, and
bonds payable of HK$5,350,199,000 (2020: HK$4,074,328,000) bear interest at fixed rates ranging
from 3.20% to 3.99% (2020: 2.98% to 4.60%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank loans of HK$1,108,516,000 (2020: HK$1,221,637,000)

are denominated in US$, HK$4,562,732,000 (2020: HK$3,004,537,000) are denominated in RMB,

HK$21,133,000 (2020: HK$28,096,000) are denominated in Euro ("EUR"), and HK$3,399,358,000
(2020: HK$2,749,535,000) are denominated in HKS.
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25. BONDS PAYABLE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current
ABS - secured 168,679 230,385
Corporate bonds - unsecured 965,958 1,657,720
MTN - unsecured 2,439,765 1,180,723
3,574,402 3,068,828

Current

ABS - secured 69,060 63,371
Corporate bonds - unsecured 1,706,737 942,129
1,775,797 1,005,500
5,350,199 4,074,328

In April 2020, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China (the
"Notice") in respect of the RMB-denominated MTN, with registered amount of RMB3 billion,
effective for two years since the Notice was issued. On 4 August 2020, the Company issued the first
tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related
expenses of RMB3,704,000, with an interest rate at 3.60% per annum, and a maturity period of three
years from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 5 August 2020 and up to the
maturity date.

On 15 January 2021, the Company issued the second tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate
at 3.75% per annum, and a maturity period of three years from the issuance date. The interest shall
be paid annually from January 2021 and up to the maturity date. In August 2021, the Company
issued the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMB800 million, with an interest rate at
2.40% per annum and redemption date of 8 December 2021. The interest shall be paid on the
redemption date together with the principal. The Company has repaid the principal and interest of
the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP on 8§ December 2021.

The Company submitted the application to the Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") on 28 November
2019 for a possible issuance of ABS by Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited ("Shenzhen Water™),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to qualified investors in the PRC pursuant to an asset-
backed securities scheme (the "Scheme™). On 26 March 2020, the SSE issued a no-objection letter
(the "No-objection Letter") confirming that it has no objections to the potential issuance of ABS.
Pursuant to the No-objection Letter, the issuance size of the ABS shall not be more than RMB300
million and the issuance of ABS shall be completed within 12 months from the date of the No-
objection Letter.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

On 17 June 2020, the ABS were successfully issued with total amount of RMB300 million, of which
the preference ABS amounting to RMB285 million were subscribed by qualified investors in the
PRC and the subordinate ABS amounting to RMB15 million was subscribed by Shenzhen Water.

The original beneficiary of the securities is Shenzhen Water. The underlying assets of the ABS are
the rights, of three project companies in Liaoning Province in relation to four waste water treatment
projects, to receive waste water treatment fees during a specific period of five years starting from 1

March 2020. The relevant project companies have pledged part of the underlying assets in favor of
the Scheme,

The preference ABS are classified into five classes based on the maturity dates of such preference
ABS, comprising:

(a) Preference ABS 01 of RMB50,000,000 ("Preference ABS 1");
(b) Preference ABS 02 of RMB54,500,000 ("Preference ABS 2");
(c) Preference ABS 03 of RMB57,000,000 ("Preference ABS 3");
(d) Preference ABS 04 of RMB60,500,000 ("Preference ABS 4"); and
(e) Preference ABS 05 of RMB63,000,000 ("Preference ABS 5").

The principal and interest of the preference ABS are repayable pursuant to the repayment schedule
of the Scheme, with interest rates ranging from 3.38% to 3.99% per annum. The Company has the
option to adjust the interest rate of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 before 26 March 2023
("The 12th Repayment Date"), to increase or decrease interest rate of no more than 200 base points
(1 base point equals to 0.01%). The holders of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 have an
option to sell back the notes to the original beneficiary at the nominal price, and the exercisable

period of this option is from the 26th day before The 12th Repayment Date to the 17th day before
The 12th Repayment Date.

In 2021, the Company repaid the principal of RMB 13,000,000 (2020: RMB37,000,000) of
Preference ABS 1 and RMB40,500,000 (2020: Nil) of Preference ABS 2 according to the terms of
the ABS.

On 21 July 2017, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with the relevant financial
institution in relation to the issue of RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of not exceeding RMB2.5 billion (the "Corporate Bond") to the qualified investors in the
PRC.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

On 24 July 2017 (the "First Issue Date"), the Company issued the first tranche of the Corporate
Bond with principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMBS5,964,000, with a
maturity period of five years from the First Issue Date. The first tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 4.55% per annum and the interest will be repayable by the Company
annually from the First Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of the
Corporate Bond, after three years from the First Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the
interest rate of the first tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two years before the
maturity date. The Company will announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days
prior to the payment of the interest for the third year after the First Issue Date. The bondholders
have an option to sell back the first tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the nominal
price, and the exercisable period of this option is five working days immediately after the issuance
of the Company's announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the first tranche of the
Corporate Bond.

On 24 June 2020, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the first
tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.55% per annum to 3.28% per annum for the period from 24
July 2020 to 23 July 2022. The Company repurchased the first tranche of the Corporate Bond
totaling RMB650,000,000, of which RMB350,000,000 had been resold and the remaining
RMB300,000,000 had been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 16 August 2018 (the "Second Issue Date"), the Company issued the second tranche of the
Corporate Bond with principal amount of RMB800 million, before related expenses of
RMBA4,171,000, with a maturity period of five years from the Second Issue Date. The second
tranche of the Corporate Bond comprises two types of bonds: (i) bonds with principal amount of
RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.60% per annum, and (ii) bonds with principal
amount of RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.58% per annum. The interest will be
repayable by the Company annually from the Second Issue Date and up to the maturity date.
According to the terms of the Corporate Bond, after three years from the Second Issue Date, the
Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond for the
remaining two years before the maturity date. The Company will announce the adjustment in
interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment of the interest for the third year after the
Second Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell back the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of this option is five working
days immediately after the issuance of the Company's announcement related to the adjustment in
interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond.

In July 2021, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the first type
of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.60% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the
period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August 2023. In July 2021, the Company announced the
adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the second type of the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond from 4.58% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August
2023.
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26.

BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The Company repurchased the first type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling
RMB79,100,000, of which RMB70,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB9,100,000 had
been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company repurchased the second
type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling RMB183,050,000, of which
RMB180,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB3,050,000 had been cancelled during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

On 21 January 2019 (the "Third Issue Date"), the Company issued the third tranche of the Corporate
Bond with principal amount of RMB700 million, before related expenses of RMB3,632,000, with a
maturity period of five years from the Third Issue Date. The third tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 3.89% per annum. The interest will be repayable by the Company annually
from the Third Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of the Corporate
Bond, after three years from the Third Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate
of the third tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two years before the maturity date. The
Company will announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment
of the interest for the third year after the Third Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell
back the third tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the
exercisable period of this option is five working days immediately after the issuance of the
Company's announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the third tranche of the
Corporate Bond.

DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Fair value

adjustments arising
from acquisition

of a subsidiary

HK$'000

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29) 8,122
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (note 9) (2,107)

Exchange realignment 112

6,127
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Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary
differences
Fair value on assets
adjustments recognised
arising from under Undistributed
acquisition of ~ HK(IFRIC)- profits of
subsidiaries Int 12 subsidiaries Others Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2020 175,541 1,094,246 239,362  (12,893) 1,496,256
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) ( 11,624} 135,189 53,578 12,490 189,633
Exchange realignment 13,897 82,495 19,164 374 115,930
At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021 177,814 1,311,930 312,104 ( 29) 1,801,819
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) ( 8951) 119,322 89,166 - 199,537
Exchange realignment 7,055 43,929 11,398 ( 1) 62,381
At 31 December 2021 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 ( 30) 2,063,737

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$107,188,000
(2020: HK$82,705,000) as at 31 December 2021 that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets in
respect of such tax losses arising in Mainland China have not been recognised as they have arisen in
certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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28.

SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (2020: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
2,860,876,723 (2020: 2,860,876,723)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 2,860,877 2,860,877
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company and foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from the Group's presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People's Republic of China, the subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after tax profits to the statutory reserve
until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries' registered capital.
Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to
offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to shareholders of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction of share premium. Pursuant to the
special resolution at the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of the Company's share premium was reduced
to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise capital reserve and other reserve.
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29.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 21 January 2021, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, Beijing Everbright
Water Investment Management Co., Ltd. ("BEWIM") signed an equity transfer agreement, the
supplementary agreement to the equity transfer agreement and the cooperation agreement with
Tianjin Binhai Environmental Protection Asset Development Co., Ltd. to acquire 65% interest in
Tianjin Binhai New Area Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. ("Tianjin Huantang"). Tianjin
Huantang is principally engaged in waste water treatment and recycling; pipeline engineering;
municipal engineering; construction, management, operation, technical consultation and ancillary
services of waste water treatment and reusable water facilities; R&D and operation of environmental
protection technology and environmental protection products; renewable resources utilisation and
operation; sludge dewatering treatment and its application. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to expand the water business of the Group. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with consideration for the acquisition amounting to
RMB666,336,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$800,136,000). The acquisition was completed
on 1 March 2021.

As of 31 December 2021, the purchase price accounting for the business combination of Tianjin
Huantang was completed. The table below sets forth the fair values of assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

Notes HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment 12 898,601

Intangible assets 15 28

Right-of-use assets 14 94,143

Trade and other receivables 379,585

Cash and cash equivalents 5,520

Inventories 9,217

Deferred tax assets 26 8,122
Current liabilities (459,057)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 936,159
Non-controlling interests (327,656)

608,503

Goodwill on acquisition 16 191,633

Satisfied by cash 800,136
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$379,585,000. The gross contractual amount of trade and other receivables was
HK$546,296,000, of which HK$166,711,000 is expected to be uncollectible.

The non-controlling interests in Tianjin Huantang recognised at the acquisition date were measured
with reference to the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of net assets of
Tianjin Huantang at that date.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$4,453,000 for this acquisition, These transaction costs
were expensed and included in "Administrative and other operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Tianjin Huantang is as follows:

2021
HK$'000
Cash consideration (800,136)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 5,520
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
included in cash flows from investing activities (794,616)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in
cash flows from operating activities ( 4,453)
(799,069)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

Since the acquisition, Tianjin Huantang contributed HK$192,521,000 to the Group's revenue and
incurred a loss of HK$41,624,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the transaction taken place on 1 January 2021, the consolidated revenue and profit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been HK$6,959,929,000 and HK$1,297,162,000,
respectively. In determining these amounts, management assumed that the fair value adjustments to
the acquired assets and liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021.
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31.

ACQUISITION OF A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 25 August 2020, the Company has, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Everbright Water
(Nanjing) Limited, increased its shareholding in Everbright Industrial Waste Water Treatment
Nanjing Limited ("Nanjing IWWT") from 60% to 100% by acquiring the remaining 40% equity
interest from an independent third party, Nanjing Zhuohong Environmental Protection Technology
Co., Ltd., with whom it had jointly incorporated Nanjing IWWT (the "Acquisition"). The purchase
consideration for the Acquisition was RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$28,990,000).

The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests and an increase in other reserves of
HK$39,374,000 and HK$10,384,000, respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions

(6] During the year ended 31 December 2021, the interest expenses on corporate bonds
and MTN of HK$118,188,000 (2020: HK$76,418,000) were not yet settled by the
Group, and recorded in "Trade and other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and have no cash flow impact to the
Group.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the non-controlling shareholder of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary made capital contribution of HK$5,059,000 to the non
wholly-owned subsidiary by using dividends declared in 2019, and have no cash
flow impact to the Group.
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3L NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

At 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows

Finance costs
Capital contribution by

a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
by using dividends declared in 2019

Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

Finance costs

Dividends declared to non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries
Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December 2021

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Dividend

payable

to non-

controlling

shareholders

of non

Bonds Interest wholly-owned

Bank loans  payable payable  subsidiaries
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,317,168 2,762,528 84,858 20,931
500,782 1,061,672 (334,334) -

- - 348,795 -
- - - ( 5,059)

185,855 250,128 ( 13,574) 1,153
7,003,805 4,074,328 85,745 17,025
1,954,886 1,120,423 (380,488) (43,956)
- - 435,302 -

- - - 26,582

133,048 155,448 ( 14,922) 349
9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as

follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

32 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2021

HK$'000

2,835

10,584

2020
HK$'000

3,593
10,402

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's ABS and banking facilities are included in
notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements. The aggregate net book value of assets and equity
interests in subsidiaries pledged amounted to HK$8,509,83 8,000 (2020: HK$4,677,087,000) as at 31

December 2021,
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33.

34.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the reporting period:

(a)

(®)

Purchase commitments outstanding in connection with the Group's construction contracts
were as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Contracted but not provided for 1,698,521 2,943,346

At 31 December 2021, the Group had an outstanding capital commitment of HK$25,519,000
(2020: HK$24,730,000) relating to the capital contribution to an unlisted equity investment.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party transactions during the year:

()

(b)

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from project operation service 96,523 80,282
Finance income 17,123 17,366
Cost of construction service 70,711 93,256

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with a related company of
the Group:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from project operation service 107,417 73,181
Finance income 53,366 50,550
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

(@)

(e)

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with an associate of the
Group:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

Service expenses for operation of waste water
treatment plants 59,640 42,650

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of
the Group:

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Rental expenses @) 18 13
Insurance expenses (ii) 2,695 1,659
Healthcare protection services expenses (iii) 17,648 -
Notes:
@) The rental expenses were charged by fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate

holding company of the Group on mutually agreed terms.

(ii) The insurance expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group on
mutually agreed terms.

(i)  The healthcare protection services expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of
the Group on mutually agreed terms.

Transactions with other stated-owned entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by enterprises directly or
indirectly owned and/or controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively "Other SOEs"). During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group had transactions with the Other SOEs including, but
not limited to the waste water treatment service, bank deposits and borrowings, and utilities
consumption. The directors of the Company consider that the transactions with the Other
SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business, and that the dealings of
the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and the
Other SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government. The Group has
also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not depend on whether or not the customers are the
Other SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions is a material related party
transaction that would require separate disclosure.
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34.

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4)) The Group paid key management personnel compensation as follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefit 25,892 23,737
Defined contribution plans 1,969 1,375
27,861 25,112

€3] The Group has rental contracts with fellow subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31 December
2021, the Group's right-of-use assets relating to such rental contracts from fellow
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to HK$3,153,000 (2020: HK$8,875,000) and lease

liabilities of HK$3,169,000 (2020: HK$9,075,000) are due to fellow subsidiaries of the
Group.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current
portion of other receivables, trade payables, other payables, lease liabilities, and borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial management department is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
financial management department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit committee
twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other thanin a

forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other receivables, other payables, lease liabilities, and
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's own
non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted investments at FVYPL are based on net asset value of the investees which
approximate to the fair value.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment at FVPL is based on the expected future cash flows of
the investment.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021:

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input  Range value to the input
Unlisted equity Discounted cash Discount rate 2.8% 1% (2020: 1%) increase
investment at flow method (2020: 2.8%) (decrease) in discount rate
FVPL would result in
decrease in fair value
by HK$112,000

(2020: HK$433,000) or
increase in fair value
by HK$113,000

(2020: HK$442,000)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level2) (Level3) Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Unlisted investments at FVPL - 222,880 - 222,880
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL - - 36,122 36,122

- 222,880 36,122 259,002
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2020
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level2)  (Level3) Total
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted investments at FVPL - 409,147 - 409,147
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL - - 34,051 34,051

- 409,147 34,051 443,198

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL:
At 1 January 34,051 31,010
Fair value gain (note 6) 968 883
Exchange realignment 1,103 2,158
At 31 December 36,122 34,051

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2020: Nil).
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
2021

Financial assets

Financial assets included in trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables
Borrowings

87

Financial

assets at Financial

amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HX$'000
2,723,451 - 2,723,451
- 259,002 259,002
2,281,986 - 2,281,986
5,005,437 259,002 5,264,439

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HK$'000

3,019,103

14,441,938

17,461,041
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

2020
Financial assets
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Financial assets included in trade and other receivables 1,642,473 - 1,642,473
Other financial assets - 443,198 443,198
Cash and cash equivalents 1,719,530 - 1,719,530
3,362,003 443,198 3,805,201
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HKS$'000
Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables 2,314,050
Borrowings 11,078,133
13,392,183
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings and cash. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and balances with group companies. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

®

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's net borrowings (being
interest-bearing financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and other interest-bearing
financial assets) at the end of the reporting period.

2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% HX$'000 % HK$'000
Net fixed rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 3.20-3.99 5,350,199 2.98 -4.60 4,074,328
Less: Amount due from an associate 4.75 ( 9,843) 475 ( 17,614)
5,340,356 4,056,714
Net variable rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 1.29-4.90 9,091,739 1.21-4.66 7,003,805
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0.01-2.03 ( 2,281,986) 0.01-2.03 (1,719,530)
6,809,753 5,284,275
Total net borrowings 12,150,109 9,340,989

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of one percent in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit before tax by approximately HK$121,501,000 (2020: HK$93,410,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to remeasure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group's profit before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for 2020.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk
) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from borrowings, cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HK$, RMB, US$, SGD and EUR.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in HKS$, translated using the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of

foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)
As at 31 December 2021

RMB SGD HKS US$ EUR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash and cash equivalents 9,545 5,131 11,233 121,810 -
Borrowings - - {2,702,395) (1,108,516) (21,133)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net (12,834) ( 54) 2,842,691 - 25,496
Trade and other payables ( 5,895) (3.648) ( 5611) ( 6762) ( 4)
( 5,184) 1,429 145,918 ( 993,468) 4,359

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)
As at 3] December 2020

RMB SGD HKS$ Us$ EUR

HK$'000 HX$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Cash and cash equivalents 2,880 2,919 12,285 9,436 -
Borrowings - - (2,054,151) (1,221,637) (28,096)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net 393,633 20,002 2,189,945 ( 860,685) 400
Trade and other payables ( 5489 (1,368) ( 2,536) ( 15137 ( 5)
391,024 21,553 145,543  (2,088,023) (27,701)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit before tax that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and the

US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the

USS$ against other currencies. Except for those subsidiaries with their functional currencies
other than HKS$, the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect to the assets
and liabilities denominated in USS$ is insignificant as the HK$ is pegged to the US$.

As at 31 December
2021 2020

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit in foreign in profit

exchange rate beforetax  exchange rate before tax

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

RMB 10 ( 918) 10 39,102
(10 918 (10) (39,102)

SGD 10 143 10 2,155
(10) ( 143) (10) ( 2,155)

HKS$ 10 14,592 10 14,554
(10) (14,592) (10) (14,554)
US$ 10 44,388 10 (55,527)

(10) (44,388) (10) 55,527
EUR 10 436 10 ( 2,770)

(10) ( 436) (10) 2,770

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities' profit before tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into HKS at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2020.
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37

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

Trade receivables of the Group represent receivables in respect of revenue from environmental
water project operation services which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group has
contract assets in respect of the Build-Transfer ("BT"), BOT, TOT and certain BOO arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, "Trade and other receivables" and "Contract assets" amounted to
HK$25,378,853,000 (2020: HK$21,285,406,000), of which HK$4,629,965,000 (2020:
HK$3,022,564,000) were due from the largest customer and HK$8,843,599,000 (2020:
HK$4,849,227,000) were due from the five largest customers in aggregate of the Group,
respectively. Since the parties to BT, BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Management groups financial instruments on basis of shared credit risk characteristics, such as
instrument type and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increase in credit risk
and calculation of impairment. The carrying amounts of each financial asset in the consolidated

statement of financial position represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from trade receivables and contract assets, the credit quality of the
debtors is assessed, taking into account their financial position, historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The ECLs also incorporated forward looking information.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, of whether a financial instrument's
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occutring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Group groups its other
receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first recognised, the Group recognised an allowance based on
12 months' ECL.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 Other receivables considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for the
lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective assessments for other receivables as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group classified other receivables in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. Management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group's outstanding balance of other receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited with creditworthy financial
institutions without significant credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from "Contract
assets” as well as "Trade and other receivables" are set out in notes 18 and 20 to the financial
statements, respectively. ‘

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings*

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings*

2021

Total More than More than

confractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted  1yearor butwithin but within More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
3,019,103 3,019,103 3,019,103 - - -
6,402 6,790 5,383 874 72 461
14,441,938 16,075,274 3,774,419 4,715,394 4,882,834 2,702,627
17,467,443 19,101,167 6,798,905 4,716,268 4,882,906 2,703,088

2020

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted  1yearor butwithin butwithin More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
2,314,050 2,314,050 2,314,050 - - -
11,756 12,397 8,757 3,123 46 471
11,078,133 12,322,948 2,584,139 3,050,538 4,539,397 2,148,874
13,403,939 14,649,395 4,906,946 3,053,661 4,539,443 2,149,345
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)
*

Included in borrowings are Corporate Bond and ABS payable with a carrying amount of
HK$2,672,695,000 (2020: HK$2,599,849,000) and HK$237,739,000 (2020:

HK $293,756,000), respectively, containing options to sell back the Corporate Bond or ABS to
the Group. For the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total contractual undiscounted
cash flow amount of HK$2,737,331,000 (2020: HK$2,704,648,000) related to the Corporate
Bond is presented as: HK$1,756,275,000 classified as repayable "within 1 year or on demand”
and HK$981,056,000 classified as repayable "more than 1 year but within 2 years" as at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$1,032,713,000 classified as repayable "within 1 year or on
demand" and HK$1,671,935,000 classified as repayable "more than 1 year but within 2 years).
The total contractual undiscounted cash flow amount of HK$246,086,000 (2020:
BK$311,243,000) related to ABS is presented as: HK$76,409,000 classified as repayable
"within 1 year or on demand" and HK$169,677,000 classified as repayable "more than 1 year
but within 2 years" as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$72,787,000 classified as repayable
"within 1 year or on demand", HK$74,028,000 classified as repayable "more than 1 year but
within 2 years" and HK$164,428,000 classified as repayable "more than 2 years but within 5
years") .

The Corporate Bond will be due for repayment on the respective maturity dates unless being
sold back to the Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of the Corporate Bond. In
accordance with the terms of the Corporate Bond, the maturity terms as at 31 December
2021 are HK$934,131,000 in 2022, HK$1,014,522,000 in 2023 and HK$855,610,000 in
2024 t0 2026 (2020: HK$103,226,000 in 2021, HK$918,742,000 in 2022 and
HK$1,834,593,000 in 2023 to 2025).

The ABS will be due for repayment on the respective maturity dates unless being sold back
to the Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of ABS. In accordance with the
terms of the ABS, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2021 are HK$76,409,000 in 2022,
HK$77,563,000 in 2023 and HK$98,249,000 in 2024 to 2025 (2020: HK$72,787,000 in
2021, HK$74,028,000 in 2022 and HK$170,360,000 in 2023 to 2025).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise
shareholders' value.

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend payment, issue new shares or obtain new borrowings. The Group's strategies are to
maintain a prudent balance between the advantage and flexibility afforded by a sound capital
position and the higher return on equity that is possible with greater leverage. There is no change in
capital management policies during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net debt against equity ratio. The net debt
against equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, excluding lease
liabilities, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises share capital, reserves and non-controlling interests.

2021 2020

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Trade and other payables 3,215,673 2,540,938

Borrowings 14,441,938 11,078,133
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ( 2,281,986) ( 1,719,530)

Net debt 15,375,625 11,899,541

Total equity 13,163,232 11,405,859

Net debt against equity ratio 117% 104%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's financial ratios as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the Group does not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

®)

(©

@

(e

On 3 January 2022, the Company announced that it had entered into a concession agreement
to secure Ji'nan International Centre for Medical Sciences Waste Water Treatment Project
Phase 1 (")i'nan Medical Centre Project") based on a BOT model with an investment
amount of approximately RMB319,519,000. Ji'nan Medical Centre Project has a designed
daily municipal waste water treatment capacity of 50,000 m* and a concession period of 30
years.

On 13 January 2022, the Company announced its completion of the issuance of second
tranche of RMB-denominated SCP in mainland China with a principal amount of RMB1
billion, an interest rate of 2.50% per annum and a maturity period of 150 days. The proceeds
from the second tranche of the SCP issuance will be used to replenish working capital of the
Company's subsidiaries.

On 25 February 2022, the Company announced the result of the resale exercise in respect of
the third tranche RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB700,000,000 ("Third Tranche Corporate Bonds"). The Company had (i) repurchased
Third Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate value of RMB251,100,000
("Repurchased Third Tranche Corporate Bonds"); and (ii) resold Repurchased Third
Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate value of RMB251,100,000. Accordingly, there
were no unsold Repurchased Third Tranche Corporate Bonds which required to be
cancelled.

In March 2022, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China in
respect of the RMB-denominated perpetual MTN, with registered principal amount of
RMBS3 billion, effective for two years since the notice was issued. As at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the Company has not issued any perpetual MTN.

On 18 April 2022, the Company announced its completion of the issuance of the third
tranche of RMB-denominated MTN in mainland China with a principal amount of RMB1
billion, with an interest rate of 3.10% per annum, and a maturity period of three years from
the issuance date. The proceeds from the third tranche of the MTN issuance will be used to
replenish working capital of the Company's subsidiaries.
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31 December 2021

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables

Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
Borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY
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2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

- 5

11,505,621 10,880,417
- 409,147
11,505,621 11,289,569
8,483,239 6,502,232
222,880 -
134,962 23,128
8,841,081 6,525,360
147,539 99,253
2,897,360 1,954,648
3,044,899 2,053,901
5,796,182 4,471,459
17,301,803 15,761,028
6,047,143 5,129,809
11,254,660 10,631,219
2,860,877 2,860,877
8,393,783 7,770,342
11,254,660 10,631,219




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities

Direct Indirect

Anshan City Water Operating PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 10,000,000 treatment
BEWIM" PRC/ RMB - 100 Investment
Mainland China 1,200,000,000 and

investment

management

Beijing Hankesen Environmental PRC/ RMB - 100 R&D and
Technology Co., Ltd." Mainland China 9,582,816 consultation
on water

treatment

technology

Bio-Treat International Limited BVI US$ - 100 Investment
10,000 holding

China Everbright Water Singapore SGD 100 - Investment
International Pte. Ltd. 5,000,000 holding,
technology

R&D,

business

development

and

management

services

China Everbright Water BVI Uss$2 100 - Investment
Investments Limited holding
China Everbright Water Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Management Limited holding
Dalian Bonded Area EW Water PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 10,000,000 treatment
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Dalian EW Chunlinhe Water Co.,
Ltd.” (note (3) & note (4))

Dalian EW Malanhe Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (3) & note (4))

Dalian Pulandian Area EW Water
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

EW Water (Dalian) Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as
"Everbright Water (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd")" (note (4))

Dalian Lvshun City Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dalian Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dalian Siergou Water Co., Ltd."
(note (3) & note (4))

Dandong EW Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Dandong EW Water Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dezhou EW Environmental
Protection Limited (formerly
known as "Dezhou Everbright
Water Pipeline Limited")"
(note (4))

Shenyang Hunnan EW Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (4))

Tongliao City Northern Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
66,500,000

RMB
120,000,000

RMB
13,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
30,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
80,000,000

RMB
48,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
60,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
freatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Construction
management

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Dalian Zhuanghe EW Water Co., PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 10,000,000 treatment
E+B Environmental Technology PRC/  EUR ; 80  R&Dand
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd* Mainland China 13,000,000 consulting on
water
environmental
technologies
E+B Umwelttechnik GmbH Germany EUR - 80 R&D
100,000
Everbright Industrial Waste PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Water Treatment Nanjing Mainland China 507,000,000 treatment
Limited* (note (4))
Everbright Reusable Water PRC/ US$ - 100 Reusable
(Jiangyin) Limited" Mainland China 20,000,000 water
Everbright Reusable Water PRC/ US$ - 100 Reusable
(Nanjing) Limited" Mainland China 11,700,000 water
(note (4))
Everbright Water (Tongxiang) PRC/ RMB - 79.9  Construction
Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 270,000,000 and operation
of wetland
ecological
engineering
project
Everbright Water (Haimen) PRC/ RMB - 90  Waste water
Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 70,000,000 treatment and
reusable water
Everbright Water (Huai'an) PRC/ Us$ - 100  Waste water
Limited’ (note (4)) Mainland China 20,000,000 treatment
Everbright River Basin PRC/ RMB 100 - River basin
Remediation (Nanjing) Mainland China 92,000,000 ecological
Limited" (note (4)) restoration
Everbright Sponge City PRC/ RMB 70 - Spongecity
Development (Zbenjiang) Mainland China 462,000,000 construction,
Limited* (note (4)) operation
and R&D
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Beijing)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Binzhou)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Boxing)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Holdings Limited

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Limited’ (note (4))

Everbright Water (Jiangyin)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan Licheng)
Limited® (note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Holdings
Limited

Everbright Water (Changzhou)
Limited (formerly known as
"EW Environmental Protection
{Changzhou) Co., Ltd.")*

(note (4))

EW (Zibo Zhangdian) Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd" (note (4))

EW (Ji'nan Tangye) Water Limited*
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'han) Limited*
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Ji'nan Zhanggqiu)
Limited* (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong
PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
119,310,000

RMB
95,061,700

HKS$
133,884,300

HK$100
Us$
12,280,000

RMB
278,877,000

RMB
386,848,000

HK$100

RMB
183,365,200

US$
4,925,000

RMB
104,291,600

Us$
106,246,600

RMB
85,200,000

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 70

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 99.9

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
freatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
freatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Juxian) Limited”
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Kunshan)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Laiyang)
Limited?

Everbright Water (Lianyungang)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Lingxian)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Nanjing)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Nanning)
Limited ("EB Water
Nanning")* (note (3) & note (4))

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Holdings Limited
("EW (Qingdao) Holdings")

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Limited ("EB Water
Qingdao™)* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited"

Everbright Water (Suzhou)
Limited* (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
58,200,000

HK$
100,000,000

RMB
169,521,765

HKS
152,898,738

Uss
18,388,200

RMB
96,186,423

RMB
488,690,000

HKS$
10,710,680

Us$
15,257,400

HK$

10,000,000

HKS$
258,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 90

- 100

- 100

- 100

79.6 -
Note (1)

- 100
- 60

Note (2)

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

‘Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

River
restoration
works

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Investment
and
management
of water
business

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Everbright Water (Wuxi) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Everbright Water (Xianyang) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited" Mainland China 94,000,000 treatment
(note (3) & note (4))
Everbright Water Operating PRC/ Us$ - 604  Waste water
(Xinyi) Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 19,496,300 treatment and
reusable water
Everbright Water Purification PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Nanjing Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 14,750,000 treatment
Everbright Water Suizhou PRC/ RMB 78.4 - River
Water Environment Mainland China 260,000,000 restoration
Management Limited* works
(note (4))
Everbright Water (Xinyi) PRC/ HK$ - 100  Waste water
Limited" Mainland China 174,590,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Xuzhou) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Holdings Limited holding
EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 100 Leachate and
(Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. (formerly Mainland China 15,438,000 waste water
known as "Everbright Water treatment
{Xuzhou) Limited")"
Everbright Water (Yangzhou) PRC/ US$ - 100 Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 16,000,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited® (note (4)) Mainland China 30,349,700 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhangqiu) PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
Operating Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 65,507,600 treatment and
operation
services
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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31 December 2021

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Zibo Zhoucun)
Water Purification Co., Ltd.*
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Zibo) Holdings
Limited

Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited®
{(note (4))

Everbright Water Technology
Development (Nanjing)
Limited”

Everbright Water Treatment
(Jiangyin) Limited®
(note (4))

Jiangsu Tongyong Environment
Engineering Co., Ltd."

Ji'nan Everbright Water
Supply Limited*
(note (4))

Ju County EW Water Limited”
(note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong
PRC/

Mainland China
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

HKS$
74,240,000

HK$100
Us$
85,666,900
RMB

10,000,000

Us$
100,000,000

RMB
55,080,000

RMB
250,000,000

HK$
83,130,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatiment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

R&D and
consultation
on technology

Waste water
treatment and
construction
and
maintenance
of pipeline
network

Construction
engineering

Water supply,
construction
and

operation of
water source
and water
supply facility

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
Name business
Ju County EW Waste Water PRC/
Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China
New Efficient Limited BVI
Ocean Force International BVI
Limited
Tianjin Huantang” PRC/
Mainland China
Shaanxj Risheng New Energy PRC/
Technology Co., Ltd." Mainland China
Ji'nan EW Environment Management PRC/
Limited* Mainland China
EW Environmental Protection PRC/
(Huanghua) Co., Ltd.* Mainland China
(note (4))
Shenzhen City EW Management PRC/
Limited Liability Company" Mainland China
Oriental Fortune International Hong Kong
Limited
Panjin City Waste Water PRC/
Treatment Co., Ltd." Mainland China
(note (4))
Sanmenxia Everbright Water PRC/
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China
Shanghai Weiyang Construction PRC/
Design Co., Ltd." Mainland China
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Issued

ordinary share/

registered
share capital

RMB
31,523,400

Us$ioo
Uss$i
RMB

10,000,000

RMB
20,000,000

Us$
35,000,000

RMB
69,286,190
RMB100

HK$10,000

RMB
44,000,000

RMB
22,000,000

RMB
1,000,000

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

Direct Indirect

- 100

- 100

100 -

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Waste water
freatment

Solar energy

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Business
management

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Survey,
mapping,
design and
consultancy
for municipal
projects
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31 December 2021
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Shenyang Dadong EW Water Co., PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 13,000,000 treatment and
reusable water
Sky Billion Limited BVI Us$ - 100 Investment
10,000 holding
Sugian City Cheng Bei PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Wastewater Treatment Mainland China 22,107,650 treatment
Co., Ltd."
Sugian City Cheng Bei Water PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Treatment Co., Ltd." Mainland China 26,403,650 treatment
Tianjin Hanquan Environment PRC/ HKS - 100 Investment
Technology Limited” Mainland China 2,000,000 holding
Victor Best Holdings Limited BVI US$ 100 - Investment
50,000 holding
World Pioneer Investments Limited BVI US$100 - 100 Investment
holding
XKuzhou Municipal Engineering PRC/ RMB - 100 Survey,
Design Institute Co., Ltd." Mainland China 10,000,000 mapping,
design and
consultancy
for municipal
projects
Zhuanghe City EW Waste Water PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
Treatment Co., Ltd." Mainland China 42,000,000 treatment
Zibo Everbright Water Energy PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Development Company Mainland China 51,350,000 source
Limited” (note (3) & note (4)) heat pump

Registered under the laws of the PRC as private companies with limited liability
Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises
Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

M

@

©))

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB Water Nanning's registered
capital. The remaining 20.3526% registered capital is contributed by three PRC joint
venture partners. Except for one of the PRC joint venture partners, who is committed to
contributing 0.0097% of registered capital and shall not be entitled to the net profit of EB
Water Nanning, the Company and other two PRC joint venture partners share the net profit
of EB Water Nanning on the basis of their respective proportion of registered capital
contribution.

EW (Qingdao) Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water
Qingdao's registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by a PRC
joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of EB Water
Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint
venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared by EW
(Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group was granted rights to
construct, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the PRC for a
period of 20 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain and restore the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The service fees are based on the extent
of services rendered and are subject to approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste water treatment related
projects and facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. Both the Grantors and
the Group have the rights to terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of
the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the waste water treatment related projects are recognised as "Intangible
assets" in the statement of financial position.
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31 December 2021

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group has to design,
construct and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the
PRC for a period of 10 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The Grantors guarantee the Group will
receive minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of
the concession periods, the waste water treatment related projects and facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. The standard rights of
the Grantors to terminate the agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste water treatment related projects and in the event of a material breach of
the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to terminate the agreements
include failure to receive payments for waste water treatment service from the Grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in constructing or upgrading the waste
water treatment related projects is recognised as "Contract assets" in the statement of
financial position.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 April 2022.
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(435,302)

(413,303)

2020
THER

15,141
666

15,807

(212,682)
(135,316)

(_797)

(348,795)

(332,988)




HEMKKEERAT
T & R MHE
BE-f - —%+-A=+—BHiEE

8. BRBLRT AR
AER 2 BBATBFENR GEAD -

2021 2020
Lipad THT FHT
Hrig*

—k. T EREE 12 50,297 16,633
— AR 14(a) 12,616 10,129
y, oy 27 g 15 59,126 72,536
REMNL. THREREZTH 7,129 406
KERSHFEENRZHEZ2ERE RE™ 2,331,530 2,113,912
AT RRAE 50,097 47,982
EHHEZ SR 2,835 3,593
INLV e ARy & e i 20 101,981 25,492
HoAh R SRR E R & 20 16,451 3,342
EABRFEBERE 18 3,533 12,695
T 5 A A0 3,691 ( 7,072

BRAEFFXZ:
T¥. & BEMELYRE 394,917 269,711
IBARITRIGEEK 124,512 55,229
519,429 324,940

iRk |
— BT RS 3,380 3,000
—HAMR% 1,620 2,663

' BE 20214 12 A 31 HILEE, EREHE=#RE. TEERERABRTXSHA
309,036,000 #:T (2020 4E: 232,419,000 ¥70) , EHWITAGZESLERBRAYN (HE
REREETX] .

BITAGEEEWERAN [EEREAKEERF L] .

F 2021 %12 A 31 H, AEFAFLHERBEEEE D HRSRER B TRIPEER (2020 4.
) .

44



HEARKSEERAH
W 2 MR BE
BE_F_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

9, e

BFAREHRE 2021 § 12 A 31 HILEEFTHBUEMIRAFTINE BRI BBAEA, &
FEMFIFEREFBFABUEHRE (20205 ) .

L B2 BUTARYE BB S R, RS IR A ke B 25% 1. BLE 2021 F
12 A 31 HibEER, WREAXTEBSEENER, 2RAETHPERBAFAEER 15%H0E
Bk, BZE 20214 12 A 31 BILFERA, RBFTABSEREEN, FREETTERBAT
AT IRIE B R 2 LR IR TR BB 2 2 5.«

2021 2020
T FHT
B — E:
AFEFiTHR 220,030 205,721
HAEEERERR/ REMLFED ( 16,766) 1,568
HBIE (PH¥E 26) 201,644 189,633
AEFR I LB 404,908 396,922
SR TAAT RE RSB AT EER LR T ERBABFZ B B 5173k
BRI EZ B H2Z KM T
2021 2020
RV T
BB AT & A 1,687,894 1,483,286
1% 25% BRI B 2 B 421,974 370,822
BIMRE ( 215,059) ( 163,485)
I AR 2 B AR tH 2 TR % ( 16,766) 1,568
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594,801 294,925 - 420 8,455 898,601
- ( 1,261) ( 253)  (10234) - ( 11,748)
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TIEFHE—FH—H 4,910 20,487 212 25,609
WE - 9 77 86
#rICH ( 339) (9,547) (243) ( 10,129)
CRUGE 316 397 6 719
FZFEZFF+_A=+—HK

—®-_—#—H—H 4,887 11,346 52 16,285
WME - 4,640 - 4,640
Wt —mp AT (B 29) 94,143 - 94,143
B - (4,134 - ( 4,139
IFIHZH ( 2,688) ( 9,876) (52) ( 12,616)
B - 4,134 - 4,134
TR 1,799 121 - 1,920

FoF—-#+-A=+—H

98,141

6,231

- 104,372
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HE KK S HIRA

W SRR M

BE_ZE-—F+-A=t+—HIEE

14,

MR (8
FREMFEREEN ()

(b)

©)

@

R S £t

FEEAMEAFNKEOHE RS EENZIEROT

FT—A—BHEHEE
HTHR
SEREARF S5
fifak

TN E -

FTtHoHA=t+—HKEE
AR

BN RAER 4

JEBP AR
FTtZA=+—HEKEE

THRBERFHAZHTHEXSHTNT:

HRERAMOFSRA (FE D

AR 47 IR

FPFRKITE GEAN TITBE A
gE8%H )

TR PSS

SRR 5K E T M HHRERMIE 31(0).

53

2021
TG

11,756
4,640
456

(10,584)
134

6,402

5,234
1,168
6,402

b

2021
Tt

456
12,616

2,835

15,907

2020
T

20,913

797
(10,402)




HEEAKEERAA
T iR bt iE
BE - —H#+-H=+—HIEE

14, #ME &
AEHAEHAAN
AEFRBLEER T LHAR LT (B 13) , 4k EBEAR— LA

. ZEACRELEMTRAMN 20194 11 A 1 HEHH 6 F. HARNFR—RERATA

SARIES, FHRFELARNTEBAERRERS. FEASFERHANEEERAN 168,000 %
TG (2020 4F: 41,000 #375) .

F20215F 12 A 31 B, FEBASABEANTLHATRHELERRHIOAT, RKHAERITHMN

PR R -
2021 2020
FHIT T
—ERA 555 95
—EEREN 734 363

1,289 458
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FEIERKFHRAF
S5 RR M

BE_F_—F+-A=1+—HILEE

15.

TRHE ™

~B_—%#t+-RA=1+—RB
B

Fog=——A—H

#E

BRI~ IR BAT (K 29)
L

e

R
FoE-—ET=A=T—H

RitHeE:

FoB-—F—A—H
ERRERE

o8

i

LA AR

FoEo— = A=+—H

T T 154K -

FoE-—F+H=+—H

N2 ER EMEEE BBRRE BFXEZR BE
TR T FHTT TFHT T
2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
481,666 - 544 - 482,210
- 28 28

( 123,604) - ( 123,604)
- - ( 1,570) - (  1,570)

77,867 823 311 421 79,422
2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
391,170 25,795 3,990 6,428 427383
54,678 - 1,596 2,852 59,126

( 37,026) - ( 37,026
- . ( 1,570) ( 1,570)

14,755 823 128 249 15,955
423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
2,271,433 5,404 4,083 2,280,920
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FEAERKFZERAA
W55 R B

BE_F_—F+_A=+—HILFE

15. EBER™ (&)

“EF2F+=A=1T—H

L3
FoRoBETTA
=+—H

Rt
ToF22FF—H—H
FARBRE
e
LR
T2=%F4+=A

=+—H

W gE
F-E-BHET+-R
=t+—Aa

BUYEER ERLERE BRES RRBeR BFXAR JE
TF#TT FHT T FHT FH¥T FHT
1,955,202 24,151 7,194 28,390 12,350 2,027,287
162,091 - 2,422 - 164,513
s - - (28,782) - ( 28,782)

141,788 1,644 619 392 841 145,284
2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
313,370 20,394 2,991 28,390 3,705 368,850
65,627 4,067 755 - 2,087 72,536
- - (28,782) - (28,782

12,173 1,334 244 392 636 14,779
391,170 25,795 3,990 6,428 427,383
1,867,911 6,245 6,763 1,880,919

T20214F 12 A 31 B, &EFAEFAFEGREZHALEN (BELEEFTRIRFLERL. 54
= R RIORER) BRI S Ay 5,786,528,000 M550 (2020 £F: 3,627,759,000 #7T) CHIFEALELE
AT R RT R SRES MR, #E— PR T FIRRINE 24,25 & 32.

F2021 € 12 H31 H, #HAFEE FHFELER] KEARA 1,317,479,000 BT (2020 £
802,437,000 %50) » JiFE B SRERHIFELENRHFTRNRESANEA.
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FEERKGERAF
Vit & IR R
BE_F-—H+-pB=+—HItEE

16. H¥
2021 2020
TFH#T Fi#c
SEA AR A B I T B 1,295,475 1,213,509
W —RI B AT (FHE 29) 191,633 -
DAL 44,468 81,966
FHR A R E 11,531,576 1,295,475
e 7= A B P A L R T e 7 S 5 Bk - = A B B I ROSE . T 1S R
BTN .
B Z RENER

BRENRTS, HECESREKIERES .

KA ERB A RS N B TREE AN EUETEE RN 3%E 10% (2020 4: 3%E
10%) WREVENIENNE AE 2 RLSRETNES ETRESH. SHEFRSRETRN
BRI LI 11.1% (20204F: 11.2%) , RSB HEHORESHE T RANK R 3% (2020
#F: 3%) FLHRN. EEERENSHXESNRSBTF2ENZHEESTE. BEWE, F
2021 £F 12 A 31 B ELEHRBERE (20204E: X) .
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FEAKKFERAH
W SRR
BEZR -+ -A=+—HIEE

17.  BEAFNE

7 et

FEFABEATZEBOF:

b4 BEA RS

FREAMKEEE SEg A
HRAR] ( [E% 350,845 ¥ T
A D

VTG R IR K & LKA
TRERERAA
C [VeydefEZz] D 5,000,000
(Bt

B «

gick
Bk

PE/
FEAM

FE/
o I P

s 3%
IVASEGEE
I H 4 H

2021 2020

49 49

FEWVEF

15K Ah

TRAEER
R EH

LR 2 AR R B E RS 54 = R T rh B R H SRR, ET ARSI

Wi — S REHREERIRS

RBEALHEL 2 AT ERMN, FEFAMTILE LA EREH (TR R |

BRESSRERME FBEBIR. Fih, bR SKAREEz BEAF.

F2021 9128 100, FEEATR T EE PR E, Wikbe R E R AR s

AR

F221F 12 A31 H, bRBEHAATRBATNRES.
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FEERKGFERA A
Wit AR R B
BE_Z2_—F1-HA=1t—HIFE

17.  BREBEARNE &)
TERBH TEERANP B TERKEARZILEMEZE
2021 2020
T FHT
FEFBEARRSERN, (5H) (6,758) 4224
REFBE AT S HMETBA, (TH) (6,692) 4,555
AR XBE A B 5 A A ME 231 8,143
18.  AARMS
2021 £ 2020 £E 2020 F
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
FiE TFHTT T FHT
E|H:1h
RFIFTEE R (a) 19,766,155 17,360,815 14,144,440
B W{E (©) ( 15831) ( 12,195) -
19,750,324 17,348,620 14,144,440
BPA
BRERFTFEERR (a) 1,949,143 1,679,084 1,360,370
W WAE (©) ( 1,561) ( 1,179) -
1,947,582 1,677,905 1,360,370
A& L %Ers (b) 42,884 3,282 28,835
1,990,466 1,681,187 1,389,205
B 21,740,790 19,029,807 15,533,645
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FEXEKXKSHRAF
Wi & HRHHE
BE_f—-—Ft+-H=+—HI¥EHF

18. AAE™ (&)
B -

(@ TF2021 128318, it [BREFHFLEHRT] SENE—AELRHEBATRN—4
R AR BN P — I FE B A T R —EREAA BRI, 4514 534,155,000 %
7o (20204E: 549,290,000 ¥75) K 822,617,000 37T (2020 4E: 789,747,000 :7T)

F20214F 12 A 31 H, BEFHFELER™EIL21,715,298,000 7550 (2020 4
19,039,899,000 ¥ 75) , AIREF RN T 4.90%E 7.83% (2020 FE: 4.90%%FE 7.83%) it
B. F2021¥ 12 A 31 H, 5HAHEENRSIFFLENZHA RPN
11,218,763,000 #&5T (2020 4F: 8,677,273,000 #:70) « FREAF S ENLHA MR BIRN
REM, BURES/HFLENZHESERRFFENREESM. CHRESIEHEEN
ok (BE 20)

() HREBERETRETERFSAMSTENGHRT. ZFSARE TEBEERHA
FHRF P 2 TR SR A1

(©)  IRER

F20214E 12 A 31 B, 17,392,000 75 (2020 4E: 13,374,000 #70) ARG ARSH
T ERTHRE. 2EASEFHRXSERXRERABEREM & MR 20 FH#E.

AT EREZZZHINT
2021 2020
FH#o FHT
T4 13,374 -
EFIARRETR (i 8) 3,533 12,695
1 485 679
FEFR 17,392 13,374

FEFATEAMRE HEASABRIEHITHRAS T, DITEFRERSHR. S48
TEFEAFERVERZ TR Bt Tt Rt ERMEEMNER. BhN
EHE R TIRE BB AR T EE M4 RS HERZ S EEE K2 38 DL ARt
ERAKEER. F20214 12 H 31 H, FiRNHAZEAMENTT 0.05%F 0.16% (2020
F: 0.06%Z 0.08%) . MIHATERREMITNT 57.65%F 64.87% (2020 F: 62.47%%E

64.87%)
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FEERKFFRAE
T SRR
BE_R_—41+-A=+—HILEE

18. HHHER (&)

F 20214 12 A 31 H, AEHET/KHERE 2 HFLEN (BELREFHHRFTLER.
B RMRIEER) MUK S EH 5,786,528,000 #E7T (2020 £F: 3,627,759,000 #70) DK
EAEERRBRITHERRITESFIESZ KR, #—SHBE8RTUEHMRERME 24,25 X
32,

19. FE®
2021 2020
T Tt
Et sl R Feit 70,189 93,641
ETHRERPHIAATIHFERET T
2021 2020
Fin T

CLFEF I B W T A 1E 946,643 831,595
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P EDERKEHRAH
W SR b
BE_F--F+_A=+—HILFE

20 MHRURER R HAR RIS

JEAPFA
FoAt B WETRR 5
W JAE

R E R
bR

B3
VL 83
W WA

Ho AR BRI B e i 4
W WRAE

Rl {E B
R — [B]BR E /A 7] 2
AR

B

2021
THTT

333,489
( 6,967)
326,522

417,859
27,428

771,809

2,548,697
( 252,045)
2,296,652

103,817
( 13,383)
90,434

192,277
9,843
277,048

2,866,254

3,638,063

2020
T

4,578

4,578

285,324

289,902

1,365,321
(97.246)
1,268,075

355,727
(  3,521)
352,206

141,426
17,614
186,376

1,965,697

2,255,599

M —REE AT R ATLIEM, ML TEREIE RIER 2 4.75% (20204F: 4.75%) 8.
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FEARKFHERAT
T S5 R AR B
BE_F_ -+ A=1+—HitEE

20.  PORUREEHALSIBER (88
PR AT E R T HRIR B2 ZFW T

2021 2020
T THT
FEY) 97,246 65,902
CHARIRE TR (HHE 8D 149,289 25,492
CRERE TR (HE 8 ( 47,308) -
HEEEEESZ BETR 47,308 -
b TRIE 5,510 5,852
FEXR 252,045 97,246
HAM WK B E 5 ik & 2 23T -
2021 2020
Tt T
T4EY) 3,521 -
CFARB{E SR (FHE 8) 16,451 3,342
THRE 378 179
FHEX 20,350 3,521

P T IR E UG 30 £ 90 HEIH. Bl EEZHREMLESERS LR R REAHRH
FREB. AEFFARFEZEEROEMRRS.
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FEERAFHRA
W SRR ME
BE-F- -+ A=+—HILFE

20 PURER R HARRIGRIR (88

AL B E R A AL i E I 1R SR 0 SIUE M TUHE R T SifE iR &, HAEWX TR
Pl KECRARNMEEMMAHTHEE. ATETERETHR, REIEFERRSRHME R
RECK RIS TXHRER TRPAAMEEES . REEEDT:

e GT U
@ —FET i3
P —#RN  FEA FWEDL ok i
T#T  THET TERT THT  T#Hx

20214£12 A 31 H:

Wit sHE 2.6% 4.6% 14.9% 61.2% 9.9%
W EE (FHIT) 800,331 1,173,035 379,138 196,193 2,548,697
BAE (F¥#T) 21,120 54,386 56,496~  120,043* 252,045
2020412 A 31 H:

BT HE 1.2% 3.7% 17.6% 40.3% 7.1%
WS E (T 555,451 581,236 102,629 126,005 1,365,321
BAE (FH#T) 6,740 21,740 18,0327 50,734* 97,246

~ A FEA E SO R AE B B RAE S50 14,257,000 BT (2020 4E: 6,978,000 7T) , HTH
TG BRAEFRTREREKERELT SRS, HE I E BRSBTS .

* F03E B S RIUS T Bk AE HH B Ve &4 114,275,000 357C (2020 4F: 39,383,000 375) , B
FERSRESAERMATERBR B RETREFEET, B 8 Bk S
4.

F 2021 12 F 31 HZAEH [ RO H AR R BRI ] BRERKIKEK 2,296,652,000 ¥t

(2020 4% 1,268,075,000 #55) , HA (@MW —EIELEREARN—2EBRBRATA
11,657,000 #76 (2020 £E 25,068,000 #75) , (b)RMK— (B4 B PR A S — [ RERA B 3KTUA
14,211,000 #55 (2020 £E: 13,596,000 #75) , ()R — Al F BB AR KA (2020 4.
61,525,000 #75) .

F2021 5 12 A31 H, FAEFAK [ HAAREREIR] B35 308,020,000 #T (20204F: ) B
AMERICER, EFEXKRKE (i) FRAFTRIRT BI5/KLE MLESREFRNTE
BN RS R =R AW mE. T 2021 4 12 A 31 BHHREEKRE N 6,967,000
T (202048 o) . EEKIUET 2024 4F 12 A 31 B4
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FEAXKEERAF
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BE_F_—F+-HA=t+—HitEE

20.

21.

Rk B LAMMYCRR I (82

F 2021412 A31 B, FEBK [HORMERTERTEE ] 88 AKE i) FRAH
IREHE 2B L E MBS IR B $y 19,381,000 #E7E (2020 45 17,238,000 35
JT) .

F 2021412 31 B, &xEFAK [ HAAMBGRITEATES ] SEEENLEETTIRALKS
REARATSRETHHAE KGR R BERA R RS FLERL 8,095,000 it

(2020 4F: 11,043,000 #55) « HT 2021 4F 12 A 31 BiHEBAAIR &R 2,382,000 355 (2020
£: 3,521,000 #70) » HEBRSTEAWT:

2021 2020
FHT FH#ETT

B3 7,297 10,270
CIE AR ELL L 798 773
8,095 11,043

F2021 £ 12 A 31 B, XERAETXKFERE ZHFLER (BEEREFPIRTFLER.
SRR RIBKE) KRR 5,786,528,000 35T (2020 £E: 3,627,759,000 3#7r) CHEH

TEAFEARBRITRB R RAT B RRESF 2 30 fh, 3 — PP T M SRR INTE 24,25 &
32.

bR g & B R AR G BUW A T4 A OB BREHA NI .

HAih Rz
2021 2020
FHT FHT
AR ETHERSE ETERER () 222 880 409,147
LA e E VR E B AR 36,122 34,051
BER 259,002 443,198
W JERNHHEE S ( 36,122) (443,198)
B &R & 222,880 .

biRdE ER R AT SR RAT BT & R bR dE BT BB R AR R UK
BEAWA TN 6%MA. HERAWEN S IEARMETARBHOSHET, HITIHTH
EARSRBH LR AN EERPL.
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FEAAKESHRAHF
W& RRHE
BEZZE_—H+-A=1+—HILEE

21

22,

FAb SRR ()
HEE
F 20206 12 4 31 B, TP T MR A4 5 S S 7 M

W& R EZEMY
2021 2020
T Tt
EFRELRITE S 2,281,001 1,702,855
O RITIERR 985 16,675
2,281,986 1,719,530

F221F12A31 H, SRARTEREN TRT, BEEATETFRSEF2ERIOAT
[IRFRE TR 29 BTAETT B AR AT ALK 38 14R .

T 20214 12 A 31 HZA%LH [RE&KREENMY ] BEERTEARXBEF BT (K
ARATRARRBAT) ZHERH 199,771,000 ¥I5 (2020 4E: 253,470,000 HTT) .

T 2021 12 A 31 H, FERUARTRIHERIERRESK 2,248,575,000 T (2020
e 1,675,469,0003870) . ARMAGAHBEREAMET, A, WEFEAS GNOESEL
Bl B (HIC. BILERMMCEENE) , FEFATEITENSEINCLESZFTHART SR
AR T

ROFREFEHERIL, MENESRDRBCARTEARERESE. RITELTERTHEER
Y IR BB AL F 2 RIT.

F 2021412 A 31 H, &REAMETEZBVACERRAR, Hik, FEACRE 124807
MTHEERTERNTHERTRATEK.
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FEERKESERA A
0 55 R B
BE-F_—F+_B=1—HiEH

23, PUARTREK R AR LA AR

2021 2020
FHT FHT

MATIRER 2,307,616 1,796,446
MATIEERHBA R FFERRB RS - 17,025
BATFIE 125,637 85,745
AU 2R T 10,023 9,713
BRI R A RAT R I 30,977 23,103
oAt R AT 2RI & R F 741,420 608,906
ot il 13,215,673 2,540,938

F 20214 12 H 31 H, RATEERAE 1,742,243,000 ¥55 (2020 4E: 1,085,901,000 35T) FEka
£#F BOT. BOO K TOT ZHz B TN MM, #is TENATRIUB R BRI

F 20214 12 A 31 H, F&H [RAHKEK] QERMAESERBAT IR R RN
80,889,000 #57% (20204F: 1,355,000 #70) , MRERIUATIRM. RE RIS ZIFERRER
FHREEE N EREEENERBE®IE.

F2021 € 12 A31 H, XEE [RATIKK] SIERLA—FBCE A R B RATIKK 12,970,000 H T
(2020 : 6,962,000 ¥5T) , HRKIBALHEN . LELTREZHKEAFRTHEER/H
B RIS R EE.

F2021F 12 A 31 H, %@ [HARATHALMNIL A OFE—MHEARN—ZEE
KRR 14,102,000 350 (2020 4F: 14,148,000 #5T) .

F2021 12 A31H, 2FEH [HMPARTENTRE] 8HBNA—RELEEREARN—
A e R B 2R 2 B At B AT 3R 228,468,000 5T (2020 %F: &) , MKERIWALIEMH. EFEA
RBITAHOFIRIT B RFEREREE.

F2021 5 12 A 31 H, @A [ HMAORARTER TR SBIERAT—RIBE A 7 K HARMAT
X1 20,508,000 7T (20204F: ) , HARRH T BURRAT RIS 1% 52 5 A S EBUR T .
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HEYEAKSERA F
T %5 R HHE
BE_F_-F+A=t—HILFEE

a5t

E[3:l1H

RITRK—H 1

RAT SR — o
RifHBFF— A AT (BRIE 250

EHH

2023 4E-2039 &£
2023 4E-2037 £E

2023 4F

MAHHES—TCHR (FiEE 25) 2023 552024 4F

EI3H

BT —F #H
RITRR— LI
RifHRF—A I (fE25)
PAHRS—TCHEER (PHE 25)

2R
B LESR
—FEANBRRER
B
BEEEHTE AFERES)
BHER

2022 £
2022 £
2022 4
2022 &

68

2021
TH#IT

1,952,995
5,522,513
168,679

3,405,723

11,049,910

316,454
1,299,777
69,060
1,706,737

3,392,028

14,441,938

2L ]S

2022 £E-2039 4F
2022 ££-2037 4E
2022 ££-2023 5E
2022 5£-2023 £

2021 4
2021 £
2021 &
2021 4

2021
T

3,392,028
4,310,110
4,437,097
2,302,703

14,441,938

2020
T

1,427,715
4,334,917
230,385

_ 2838443

8,831,460

153,857
1,087,316
63,371
942,129

2,246,673
11,078,133

2020
T

2,246,673
2,806,017
4,209,549
1,815,894

11,078,133



FEMKAKEHRAT
W S5 R T HE

BE-E - —F+-f=+—HikEE

24,

B (8

F2021F 12 A 31 H, &Rz ETHT RS PAE T 5 ARER RS FER SR 2
KN BT R T B R AATET B AT 2 B, F 2021 #£12H8318, %
FRITHTRBER 9 4,308,051,000 3575 (2020 48 3,193,828,000 3 0) , HET 20214 12 A 31
HE.BhH 2,269,449,000 #:7T (2020 4: 1,581,572,000 #70) .

T 20214512 A 31 B, TIRIFGTHEBF A 11,047,629,000 7T (2020 £F: 9,572,153,000 3
T HPBENA 6,822,290,000 HETT (2020 4F: 5,422,233,000 3 7T) . EFEF TP RITR
KRBT, 996,964,000 H7T (2020 4E: 995,384,000 #T) MAATIEE, KT 2021 128
31 HE3)H 696,964,000 35T (2020 4E: 695,384,000 ¥ 7T)

T 20214 12 A 31 B, BTIE5KALE 8,368,757,000 ¥55T (2020 4% 7,948,884,000 5%) FRfL
SRKEETHE UETRNOE. MAEFAEREE, FHENNRESNEREE. T 2021

12431 H, HXREEDE 6,285,589,000 #5T (2020 4E: 5,227,683,000 H5) . AEH L
SEM BT ERE R TER. ETRTREKBBRNREEATETHE AT EEREET

FHHERATRRARERRLABRE, REREEREIEE O SIS kTS

%o BEMERRFHEERE M — S SR TS BB 37,

F 20214 12 A 31 B, REHRITHR 9,091,739,000 #55 (202045 7,003,805,000 wBIn) EE
BRI 1.29%Z 4.90% (2020 4F: 1.21%F 4.66%) 5, RpiftEe 5,350,199,000 ¥ 7.

(2020 ; 4,074,328,000 7T #HFEEFZE 3.20%%F 3.99% (2020 2E: 2.98%Z 4.60%) it
B

T20214 12 A31 H, &HEEARITIHEHK 1,108,516,000 5T (2020 4F: 1,221,637,000 5T BAE
TCIHE: 4,562,732,000 87T (2020 4F: 3,004,537,000 ¥#55) WARMIHE; 21,133,000 #T

(20205 28,096,000 #75) LIBKITIHE: & 3,399,358,000 7T (2020 4% 2,749,535,000 3
J6) BB
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FEEAKEHRAH
W S5 R M
BE_F- -+ _A=1+—HiLEE

25.

MAFF R
2021 2020
F¥T FHT

E| S
B RS —R 168,679 230,385
AFMRSGF— R 965,958 1,657,720
TS —To AR 2,439,765 1,180,723
3,574,402 13,068,828

IR

AR HH 69,060 63,371
AT fRF—EHH 1,706,737 942,129
1,775,797 1,005,500
5,350,199 4,074,328

T 20205 4 A, RAFIREG A RILERITRIM S 5w gt A RTTHER FIIREE
RHMESEMNEST, EREFAART 3012, HRWAERHBHPRITFEE. F 2020
F£8H4H, XAFRRITHE—HUARTIHEAPRHERE, EFAART 1042 GOBRMERFFXL
ARTH 3,704,000 80) , #EFIZEF 3.60% KR 1 RITHERIFA=ZE. FEAH 202048 A
s HREZMH LSS M.

TF20214£1 H 158, AAFERITUARTIHENE P HER, £FAART 1042 G
XTI AR 3,000,000 77) , FERIFN 3.75% LR B RT BRI AH=E. FEFH
2021 % | AREFH HIEEEIA. F20214E 8 5, FAFRTE—HIUARTHEBER
piEssF, EHAART 8412, FEFEN 2.40% K RATARN 2021 5 12 A 8 H. FIBHMERFTH
WENER A S — M. AATTTF 2021 4 12 A 8 AR UA R AHENE — B R
HOEEEFE.

AAT T 20194 11 A 28 HEEKKS GRID FRAT ( IRIKE] , ZARZEERE
AT RBEBEEFEXRHES R MR ) WTEERITES IS T HEARREEEM L
BEHZT S ( [ EXA] ) #BXHiF. F20204£E3 82608, EXFALTERUE ( [ER
WR | ) BARXRERITEESFIESRFLE RN RELFNE, BFEXFERNEITHE
ABEZTARMIMLEEFIRESEAT B L7 W BH&ET 12 H ASRERIT-
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25.

RifHiss (82)

T 20206 A 17 HEHART 3 LM EF-/REHRIET, HPART 2.85 1206 & %>
YHFERPEEBRREEANYREART 1,500 FIRER =X ERES T K &AM,

GRS Z RIS A RBRYIK % o B STRHESR MR B AT L TEHHE A TR
WANE KA BT B AT 2 H 2020 65 3 H 1 B2 5 40 A4 e 1] PO AT 7K AR S 2 MR 2 AL «
TSI B 2 T EEXT R R R = RIS 4 T R R

AR B STHHESFRIER R AL I TRIEFOBM H S AR K5, A

(a) MERFEF=ZRHER 01, AHART 50,000,000 ¢ [MEAREFLFHIES 1] %

(b) RAREF=ILRHESR 02, HART 54,500,000 ¢ [EAHREF=SCHES 2] )%

(c) AL H = FFIESF 03, AARH 57,000,000 ¢ [REEEF=IIFES 3] )%

(@) HRALFE=XFFIES 04, AART 60,500,000 ¢ [MRAHZEEIIFER4] ) X
(e) MALRFF=IHFIES 05, FNARIT 63,000,000 ¢ [{RALEHETEF=3FESH 5] ) .

AR T F= RS 2 A S R F BRI L 2 B EREE, #4TF 338%F 3.99%2 7|
EHE. FATFWMLLEFRET 2023 3H 268 ( [H RAMEEKHE] ) ZiABRRERBZIH
B 4 RARCEBEF=SCHRIESS S FIRIZR, RIRFERMINEFEDO AT 200 M8 QA BAST
0.01%) . RAGZRBF=IRFIESR 4 RRAGEEF=HRFIES S A AHE TN, T ik
BEFEEIFRIKS . ZTHARZTERAEE 2MNER TS 26 BEZESE 12 MEKHH
B2 17 Hik.

F 2021 4, AAFBER = LRIESF Z RZHEETREREF=LFIEHF | HELART
13,000,000 (2020 &: AR 37,000,000) FIRAEHFF=TFFES 2 AL ART 40,500,000
(2020 £E: &) .

T 20174 7 A 21 H, FARARATEERBEERTUARPIHELSBEAEE AR 25
LHAR M ( [AREER] ) SHXERIAIT LA

F2017F 78248 ( [BEXRRITHB] ) . FARRITE-PEELEFHIART 1012 Guk
HRF AR 5,964,000 57) A TGS, HRBERETHEETAANHE. £—HAF MR
FIRERE 455% 1 B RA AR TFERRTHARZZMB ILGEZARE. RIBAFA MG
Z%F, HERRATAMET=FF, £AREARE—HARMA TR BEIIKRTHEZ
FHR, FARBTERRITEHE, MAEZFAFER 20 N T/EH AMER R HBHE

(WA . BEFEARA TR, TRE UMEBE— AR GSER FALH . HIH
BT ERAAREE AR RNE R RAEE A RFFERNRZAMEMEANTEH.
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25.

REAHES (42)

T202056 424 B, AAFEAMHXE— YA R MSOEMRRIFE, T 2020474 24 0
Emn$7ﬁmam%mﬁ%ﬁﬂ$m¢ﬁ%Fﬁ§1n%o?ﬁ%mwﬂnmﬁnamﬁ
E,¢QEE%E%—%ﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁAEm6mpmmm,ﬁ*AEmswmmmoaﬁ%%,
TR AR 300,000,000 S H7EE.

T2019°8H 16 A ( [BoRRFAB] ) , AARNRTE WAL LMIART 842 (0
BRAHATFCART 4,171,000 8) RIATMH%, BIRME KR AR NTESE. E-Ma
ABEFEEBEHLES: OFSSTART 4 ZHEEHR 4.60%i+ B S, ()EELH
AR 4 LHEREFE 4.58%1 SIS . FARKTFERRTHYESINH HSELH
2. MEAAMBPZER, AERRITHIERH =R, AATEARE - HAT RS
TEMBMATHEZETNE. AR TE_RRITANE, TABSENREN 204 T
fEH AMERIERRIEE (WF) . MEREEAG T, T S A TR
FEETARF. FIIROT EHINEIEA L TR A LS A RS ERR Y A%
JERRATEH.

T2021 471, ZATERBE - HAAMBSHGEM—E 202148 5 16 HE 20234 8 A 15
Eiﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%Mmm%ﬁ%%&m%f?mm¢7ﬂ,$ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%:%ﬁﬁﬁ%%
A Z7E 2021 4F 8 A 16 B 2023 4 8 H 15 B ILAAMIBEEHIEM 4.58% 8% 3.20%.

?&Emmﬂﬂzﬁﬂamiﬁ,$QEEME%:%QEﬁ#m&ﬂ—é%AEm
79,100,000, HAH AR 70,000,000 e, MEAART 9,100,000 DL, FTRE 2021
ﬂﬂzﬁmﬁiﬁﬁ,Iﬁﬂawﬁﬁ:%ﬁﬁﬁ#M%ﬁ:%%AEmmummw,ﬁ*k
BT 180,000,000 E4 34, T4 ART 3,050,000 SLaiEsy.

T2019F1H21 8 ([B=RRITAH] ) , FAFARTESHALSIIART 742 (1
BRAHIIFSC AR 3,632,000 ) BIAR B, IR ME SWRT BT AMEE. B=HA
RIS RERE 3.89% 1 BRAA TR TFEZRRAT EPEZFIWNE LGESIHAE, HEA
ARFZER AR=RRTABEH =S, AATEREE=FAAMETINANS
TRELRENE. EATBTFEZRRITEYE, XM ESENHF S 20 AT H ARER
HEBEHE () o BB ARE TR, TRA XM ES AT AR EE T AL
Ao ETEBATEHIN R A AT R EA R B RBE =W AT RBENEZ A B HEAS T
H.
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26.

TR FEBLI

EBIERBL T = R A T ENZZFIMT

BB FEFR I 7=

Bt B A = BT
FEEA R E IR
o
FoE-F¥—-H—H. 2285 +-A=+—H
A_F—_—4—H—H -
Wi —m AR (29 8,122
MR SRR ER T (HHE) (2,107)
bR E 112
T2 -_—Ft+ZA=1+—H 6,127
3% SR T
TR &
(B 5%
BRERBERER
W &) BB
MEAT #1258\
FirdEZ ZHEEZ  WRAE
ARMERE  EHESEEH RO RER oAt Bit
THTT T-#ET FH#5T Tt T
FR2-_FH—F—H 175,541 1,094,246 239362  (12,893) 1,496,256
ek GEAD) 138 H
BERI (HE9) ( 11,624) 135,189 53,578 12,490 189,633
IR 13,897 82,495 19,164 374 115,930
T2IE2FT-HA=1+—H
k-F_—F—H—H 177,814 1,311,930 312,104 ( 29 1,801,819
MK/ GEA) R
BRI (fHE 9 ( 8,951) 119,322 89,166 - 199,537
IR 7,055 43,929 11,398  ( 1) 62,381
FZE=Z—-F+_A=+—H 175918 1,475,181 412,668 (  30) 2,063,737
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26.

27.

IR (82)

F2021 % 12 A 31 H, AERATFHEAMPAEZ GBS R 107,188,000 #yx (2020 4
82,705,000 ) , BHRTRATHERMGZE TR AR HEMNERAR, HERREET—=
TEAEH. BTFEATRREEHA SR/ —BHRIZETHELAR, BAEEAMNAINREE
FI AT REIRA XSS ANBIIN TR, MR E A7 2 RSB T S A EBLIR
=,

R E VSRS, T E RS S R B Ak I AR T IR B AN 10%
WM. ZMEE 20084 1 B 1 B4R, FEMAT 20074 12 A 31 HEZ&F . MPEAM
5t R 8 R RERETERE N, WA RAGETINER, AEAREABEN 5%
10%. FHit, FEFAZSRTHERBRSFHBATSIRE 20084 1 A 1| BE-EZ BRI
Wz B A B P8

AT AEBRRREEEH AR EFAFTERER.

;%N
2021 2020
FHT FH#HT
e
10,000,000,000 i (2020 4F: 10,000,000,000 &)
45 B E{EL 1.00 T A B AR 10,000,000 10,000,000
ERITEER:
2,860,876,723 it (2020 4F: 2,860,876,723 &)

ST 1.00 A @R 2,860,877 2,860,877
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28, R
FEATAEERAFERZ HEETRETHNEFTERE P2 HENETEHERET.

@ SRR
ST S & IR E TR 51 TR BT AL RAFIIRSE T AR A7 RS2 I SRR
FEEZILRED.

() EE#EE

REERTHPERBAFTN (FEARINEAFE) , HEEREARINEEH &
HiR%Z. REHE, 2D 10%HERRBUFRAAILEELEMHE, HERITHES
BUEZM R A FREMBE AR 50% 81k, FHEKXPENKERE, HEMHETHTIRSE
ARTHF RGN EA A MERE S . REEEAFATARTEIEA R ZBRIRA
BB o

(i) BABRMEE
LB AR R BT80S RGBT . ARIE 2015 48 12 A 15 HAA B 28T H04E
BHREFHEEHRENRILE, SATRBBNOETLETRESHEREHRNE R
&

(ivy (Hinfgx

R & aE RS & L bEE.
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29. WHEH

F202141 A 21 H, ZAFRALEMNBAR LTI AFRAESHERAR  [dEK
#l) EREREFFEFLRBEERATNEE TERXGEE. FRXSERAM R RSE
B WK EREFXIAEGAGEERAT ( [REFIE] ) 65%HBN. REFERE
MNEFKLEEREEFA, FETRE. WEBTE. BAEHKRENRR. E8. 25, HR
BHREERS . HEMNERFE=RHFRS2E. BAEREANHARLE. BRETHLEE
HMNH. U2 28T Kk 5k 5 B S A —28 4 . R TAM ISR
11, TERRMAART 666,336,000 (Z{EL] 800,136,000 ¥E75) « AKKIMT 202138 18

SERR.

BE2021 € 12 A31 H, REFELSESFHBRBEMBREECSER. TRPFIHEREHCH
INRIRFRAVE = R S ff 2 A fotirfE .

W B A2

AnHE

B T

Ylv. TEREEE 12 898,601
T B = 15 28
{6 B = 14 94,143
T WS e 3 e LA AT o 379,585
MERMSZERY 5,520
T 9217
I FEF T 2 = 26 8,122
vish B (459,057)
A RN EFIKE T P50 = 5 E S5 936,159
e (327,656)
608,503

W = 2 R 16 191,633
MEHNEH 800,136

TEE, Rk BB 2 f R 379,585,000 HETT. SISO 2R B HL i RECER
BN 546,296,000 #76, HH 166,711,000 # T HEI LA E .

REEINGE AR BN 28 45 MR A S AR A 2 T B BT o RIS B P i 2 A e M el
TR,

AEFABR LR B P2 BB 4,453,000 it. BERXHBRADFHRE 2021 2 12 A 31
HIEBEMNEESEERESRIE, FiHA [ITERERMLSERA] .
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20.

30.

WS &3 (80)
HRETGRERFE Z NSRBI

2021

T

meRMh (800,136)
W & R &SN Y 5,520
IHARBESREH B HERASSEMYIR K9 (794,616)
HAZEESREREZ W ZRA (_ 4,453)
(799,069)

BrE A Z R EIRINERBTR B

BilEAE, #|E 2021 5 12 B 31 BibEE, REXRFAXREFATIRWE 192,521,000 T, I
RNEEBFHRTHR 41,624,000 #ET .

MEWIAT 2021 £ 1 B 1 HitfT, AERHEZE 20214 12 B 31 HIEEENESWBREFEB S
R 6,959,929,000 7T K 1,297,162,000 #5T. EEXEZEELTN, FHREBRMIZIWMT
2021 F 1 A 1 BRAE, ZWWIEHTHE &= R AMA TR BRRFTE2 A AMHEEBIAERE.
W — T AR 25

F20205 8 H25H, ZAABIHEEMBATNAKES (BR) FRAGAE —KMLE=
HAE, EREIFERBAERAR, WEXTIEKGEERERAT ( [EIILE
K] D) FIRE) 0% C T D , BEEBERK TIEKFHBBMN 60%EIME 100%. BY
I A R T 26,000,000 (Z:{E%) 28,990,000 #7T) .

AE R AIEEA R W 39,374,000 3T K H Al A% &80 10,384,000 #IT.
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3. ZERERERME
(@ EBEXIEREXSH

(i FE 2021412 A 31 Bib4EE, REFAMKZAGATMAEEFHERNRIER
FH 118,188,000 3 7C (2020 %: 76,418,000 #:5) , HidFKAE 2021 12 A31 H
ZEEWMHFREERR [RATKER AR , HAEFAFTHERER
nﬁ]o

(i) BZE 2020412 31 HIEFEE, —RIELEHBATH—LEBRE R #
AT 2019 EEIRA B 1ZIELE T B A TSR 5,059,000 #56, XALFAFL
NERETW.

(b) EBIES=ERABEES)

IZRE 58
(= VNGRS
WATEERR RATHF MRS BEEBERES
BRI TH#TT T

F-2=%5—H—H 6,317,168 2,762,528 84,858 20,931
MBS WME 4 ES 500,782 1,061,672  (334,334) -
W% % - - 348,795 -
— A EARN— &I EER R FBT

f#H 2019 EE IR EAENE TR - - - ( 5,059)
LR 185,855 250,128  ( 13,574) 1,153
FoE2=%¥+=-A=+—H

EK-F-—H—F—H 7,003,805 4,074,328 85,745 17,025
BERERET T 1,954,886 1,120,423 (380,488) (43,956)
%2 H - - 435,302 -
Mt BARKIEERBRERIRAEE - - - 26,582
RS 133,048 155,448 ( 14,922) 349
T2_—%+ZA=1—H 9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
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3. LEUNERERME (48
() HEHEWMHEEM
ZANESMERBzHENSHEBEHNT:

2021 2020

FHT F¥#T
HELEES 2,835 3,593
R 10,584 10,402

32, BT
RAERAR = LRSS RTRE T & FHRH 2 AR =2 8T WS IREME 24 & 25.

F2021% 12 A 31 H, BERME>RHEAFRN 2 SKE#ER 8,509,838,000 #75 (2020
£E: 4,677,087,000 #7T)

3. A&
FEE TSR AR AET -
(2) HRAERFESLHHRBEAELT

2021 2020
FHT FHT
SITAEERE 1,698,521 2,943,346

b  F20214 12 A 31 H, %W LR RERZ B4EKIE 25,519,000 #x
(2020 4F; 24,730,000 7T

79



FENARKSFRAF

W 5 R MHE

BE_F- -+ H=+—HILEE

34.

KEKTT3E 5
RARE LM FTRBL X RERS, TEA, FREARET FTHERRKBKHILS:
AEASFRAFELRMNBATANIEBRBARRE THRER LS :

(a)

(b)

(c)

G

HREE RS
g L&
BERE A

FREASFEAPRBEARRET THIXRBEH XS :

B ZEE RS et
W55 Wi i

ARASEAEAREATNRET FHIRBRI S

ERAE] HEERETT X

AR SARBFRZRBARTRET FFIRBIT XS

MEFT
TR 9
fid FEdRmR 3 1

P -

(i)
(i1)
(iif)

By
®
(i)
(iii)

2021
T

96,523
17,123
70,711

18
2,695
17,648

Rl 7 S A 2 1 7] 4% B 0 R o PR 458 R 2 B X007 e e 9 4 KA R

T 25 [ 1) % B /A 2 0 A O o 28 PR T 540007 B A 2 s B
I A< 5% A 70 2R S R 4 ) ST A+ W BRAR B 3% P T4 X0 Hh il A9 2% 3K B o
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4.  XKBEHRH (8
() SHREAREMEEMSLHAZS:

FERAER P EBUFESHEFYE. BEBALREMBREEREERE K]
gk (ZFR [HMEARAL] ) SEFHMPEFFBEPEER. F2021E12H31H
IHEE, 2EASHMER A2 HFTHREZEE (ERET) BRKAEERS. 817
RERERKEAAENAE. FAFTEFIAASZSHMER L2 [R5 TIRAE
H B E SRz iEs), RS A8 H K HAh EA k5 434 i o B BUR R s
A, BXFASHEERNLFERE R RJE . SEFAFR=RERSHLER
BUR, BiESBORHIEEENHEARFIT, SANEEAEEARMESME. &%
AERLERRFZZARG, FATNEFANZEXLSBEAATHBLZERRESTR
5o

(H FRACAFEEEEARZRBIMT:

2021 2020
T T
¥ & R Ath e HA e RARF) 25,892 23,737
F g 1,969 1,375
27,861 25,112

(& FEASHRMBARITIATEREEREAL. T2021 12831 H, 2£@A5%
F5FZMBARZAEEHHE ROFREBETEHA 3,153,000 H75 (2020 4
8,875,0003&70) , BNAIEAMBASZHEMRFA 3,169,000 BT (2020 £F:
9,075,000 #7C) .

81



HEARAKFHR A
W AR B
BE_F_—F+-A=+—HILEE

35.

S TANARMER A RIERS

EERFCHAERASENY. MIKK. AR, MK, RN, fEH
BEERFN RSB ZARMESHEKEEME, FEHTREFTATEHAANDN.

FEAZMFEER T ERECEMTAARNET B BEREER. TEMEBN, UE
BART=2ER TRZMELS), FECHEMNAZ EERAEE. GHEBYS 8K
FEEH. FRZRSFERRITREGERFAER, UEFHPHREERERE.

EMBETRIEARMEUZTRTEER S (MERESEREE) SRXE TZUX
BHEBHNK. THERBRTIA Tt A -

Ebe R FoA NSRRI AT OB AR SR R AR SR I R BTG 2 A e B 753 RA A
& FERABEFRFYZ TRZTERFE, WATHRRASHBZFXTE. T
2021%F 12 A 31 H, BMERWE, FAEEAESZTELHREBITERER.

DARMMEHAREZIE LR ARMETIRBERRBFAAMRS=HEEE, FRAG
HE5ARMERE.

A RN EFAS R ZAE LR A R ETHRER SN TR RS REE E .

PLF AT 202146 12 A 31 BX & TAMEZ EAXARNTRESASHEREER e BERAE S
s

BEAXATHR ARMEITRA
fE{EHTY E=L P JoE B Ut
A RMETEA AL MR 2.80% HEEA CFB)
WA IE LT R (2020 4 1% (2020 %E: 1%)
A B 2.80%) #BERARME

Wb 112,000 T
(2020 £
433,000 #75)

ER3n 113,000 ¥t

(2020 £E;
442,000 ¥7T)
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3s.

SRTLENARNERARMERER (8

A =y

TRIFERBE M TANARNETREL:

HARMETTRIIHE

F2021F 12 31 H

BAR RYME T AR 2R
IF BT HE

BLA SR E T AR
3k b AR R

F2020% 12 318

P2 RANME T AB AR
E |tk e

BAA SMME TSR 2R 1Y
FE LM R

2 FetrfE i B R BT R

TiERTH EXTHE EXFTH

BT  WASGE SRAMEE
(B85 (EZH (BE=H

T T T#L

222,880

- - 36,122

At
Tt

222,880

36,122

- 222,880 36,122

259,002

2 S B TSR A DL T R

TR BEATHE EBXAATR

KRt WAZEE WA
(B4 (BFEZH (B=5

T FHT Tt

- 409,147

B - 34,051

Bt
FHT

409,147

34,051

- 409,147 34,051

443,198
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35. SMTAMNARMERARMERS (8
EZHARMETRETENNRSIF:

2021 2020
F¥ET Tt

BAA e E i AR 25 A 3E b i A R Bt
F—HA—H 34,051 31,010
ARMEETZHRE (K 6) 968 883
b IRTRI L 1,103 2,158
F+=H=+—H 36,122 34,051

FEFTF 2021 K 2020 4F 12 A 31 HHTARMIRA RPETH B SRS,

BZE 20214 12 A 31 HIbFE, BN _FARNETEZMFLEMER, ETEME
FEREMAM, BZGRLEMEAREH (20204: F) .
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36. RAIKSHERTE

TREWA, FRHeMTRKKEMEN T :

2021 4E

SR>

TN R K B Al AR IR B - B 7
Foto G Rl 3 7=
A& KA EFHY

L0l

TR T 3K B At A BRI 4 1 £ £
1

85

ERERAE ZARNE
HEE AR

SR~ SRE™ B
FHET FHIT FH#T

2,723,451 - 2,723,451
- 259,002 259,002
2,281,986 - 2,281,986

5,005,437 259,002 5,264,439

EREEATH R
SRR
THT

3,019,103
14,441,938

17,461,041



HEEKKFZHRAF
W 35 R R M
B2 _F- -+ A=+—HILEE

36.

ERAR S ERM TR (8

FIRGEHR, FRANESRTHMKEEDT:

2020 &

k57 .

TH N ISE MR 5K B At 7 e 3k 0 By < s B 7
HAhERF ™
HeXREFHY)

LSR8 B T Bl B
5%

86

(%)

LRERE FARHNE
THER AR
ERIE SR
TH#IT FHT

1,642,473 -
- 443,198
1,719,530 -

SR
TH#TT

1,642,473
443,198
1,719,530

3,362,003 443,198

3,805,201

B A TR

£ 5
THT

2,314,050

11,078,133

13,392,183
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37.

W55 KB B 2 AR R B

ARHZ T ECMTREBEEREAE. WESMTAZ IBHNETNEEAZLEEER
B . FREATHFHMSRBE R AN, QIEFBORR RN BT ERR HA
RIS, TYEHEE R EP=4.

FERASRMLAFEZ TERMOEARRAR . STRAKR. FRARERSRERKE. EHS
B A EERERARRBZBOR, AXBEMAT FX. SREATETETRZ &7 B0%
BT mRIE 25,

FIEL 2

FEBZHNZRGEERAMERAZ AL KA EEMY. ERREALT LR, BRHFIE
KEER M2 RS AEA D HARZAE MR RAS R A RMENEAS . FEFHE
A SRATE TRARRIERR .. REFAZ FIREREERERE, #HT FX0).

0 R

TREFIARE T EREHR AR AR ERABRASRASSMIURK
it BERAT=) Z PR .

2021 2020
SERRF R SERRA
% T % FHT
ERAER, (FR) B
L 3.20-3.99 5,350,199 2.98-4.60 4,074,328
W R —(EBCE A B #R IR 475 ( 9,843) 475 ( 17,614)
5,340,356 4,056,714
FHFEER () B
R 1.29 - 4.90 9,091,739  1.21-4.66 7,003,805
W: RERAEZENY 0.01-2.03 ( 2,281,986) 0.01-2.03 (1,719,530)
6,809,753 5,284,275

BRI 12,150,109 9,340,989
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37. WMENREBEFEABE (8
FIERME (50)

(ii)

BB

T2021F 12 A 31 H, EMEHMTERERATHERT, FREEER/THE 1%,
it S EURE R R AT BRI,/ 120 121,501,000 37T (2020 4E: 93,410,000 3
6D .

LRGN TR I AR R BB B FU T R AR S RS . BB MM BRI AR
ATFMEWRELRE, HFOATEFIBFEANRAHFTMEPRELEDATSL
R EFERRO SR TR . T hAEEHFRE PR MR R R ETAR
PERBLEMBENRRL, Hx 450 B R R 2 TR R RS 4: M
Fit B2 BB, BRI 2020 SRR TR FIZEAERAT

SRR

@

T AR 2 B TR

ARAFECST BIFER 2Z THEER M UASPZ 38D THEZ 5. e RIAESEH
Y)s REGERI R AT BT R B T R SRR AR R EE ST, AR, %
TG~ FINE T RIKTT.

TRAFIFEE T EIREG HRE AR LA ThEE 5 T LASM 38 1 vHEx DA A B =8

MAENE TR ARFIEE, RESBBETIIR, FEREROARICESR
o DR SNE LS 5 Bl B A A SR Y 2 50 B T A2 AR 20 E T RS -
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37 WMHERREIERRESE (4)

SHCRE (8)
()  WRRZETNE (8

RERAESZMY

=1y

Rl () HEHA BT
IOE 4 M 3k B LA 4+ k0

AeRREZFNHY

(178

L ANCH DI 7 AE bt 2
AT K B H A B A 305

WARZZ I RS
(BRI THIR)
- T20214 12 A 31 H
AR Fringx iy EXL  BE
T T THx  FHT FHET
9,545 5,131 11,233 121,810
- - (2702395)(1108516)(21133)
(12,834) ( 54) 2,842,691 - 25,496
(5895 (3,648)( 5611)( 6,762) ( 4)
(9,184) 1,429 145918 ( 993,468) 4,359
TARZZHN TR
(BREmFIR)
120205 12 A 31 H
AR ¥ T EJT BK T
T FHT  THT  THI T
2,880 2,919 12,285 9,436
- - (2054151)(1221637)(28096)
393,633 20,002 2,189,945 ( 860,685) 400

( 5489) (1,368)( 2536)( 15137) ( 5)

391,024 21,553 145,543 (2,088,023) (27,701)

89



FHEAKRKEHRAH

I 25 R R M
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37.

W5 R EE BARRBUR (4
SNCRfEE (88)

(i)

BB

TRBIIBETEREPRFRATN ERRRMINCICRT ZE B, MHER
AR ERREAE, FEAGGRBRRFSSZROMETMW. RETE, BR
YETE AR R A B R A AR T RS AR TR EARW. &
THRILSRTEN, SULRTIHAN R RAME X2 SNCICRESHEHEREK.

F12HA31H
2021 4E 2020 4=
[E 5N ] MR BLRT
CEEHA, BMEHR LREHS B _EF
CFEE CFEE CFERE (R

% FHT % Tt

AR 10 ( 918) 10 39,102
(10) 918 (10) (39,102)

Fringk o 10 143 10 2,155
(10) ( 143) (10 ( 2,155)

Bt 10 14,592 10 14,554
(10) (14,592) 10 (14,554)
£ 10 44,388 10 (55,527)

(10) (44,388) (10) 55,527
BR TG 10 436 10 ( 2,770)

(10) ( 436) (10 2,770

LEREFIN ISR AN AR AL B MThEES BTN 2510 B RS AN
& AT BE TR DL AT BRI 0 SE R oM i B

RS TIRBSNOCREN R C R T EFT B SR GRS R AFTRE RESERAE
ZINCRB ISR TR, B3R ASRMRA MDA T LSO 5 Tt EEE A2
(] RZAT SRR BRSO - BT R oR S b 45 O 5 S R S B A A R T 251 3% o o
PREERIZER . AR 2020 ER 5T R — BHERAT.
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37. WERREHEBHREEE (48)

1EREA
TERREBEMNERER, AR RRER 2 RN, F5EEhR SR 30
HZE 90 HA R,

FAEH 2 IO K FE Sk B FMRK IR H 2 32 B RS WS 2 R, & 255omi k. i
5t ZREABEBREE—BZ ( [BT) ) » BOT. TOT BET BOO LHZ S5RASTLE
BAERHE 8=,

FREMK, [RBIRKREMMBERT] & [42%77] 4 25,378,853,000 7T (2020 4E:
21,285,406,000 370D , HHRBURKZE T EITN 4,629,965,000 #7T (2020 4E: 3,022,564,000
B0, RPIWAER R RE RIS HUA 8,843,599,000 57T (2020 4E: 4,849,227,000 ¥
76) « HF BT\ BOT. TOT & BOO ZHEIZZ B Xt 75 A B T BURHLIE, REFANERR
REE. REFAHTHEIZSE ST 5.

REEER AR AREMETHRET S, CREETARMERARIE (T AENER
ERREIPE) SREMTR. LAMERIE IR SR = R O 4 22 F 3 3 4
B RRERRRNREE.

HRENGMBETRRASREBENFE M — A REDE4R, SRBRERS PR,
& BB 5 AR B SR 48 LA T AT R 3 -

. 1% AL B W 55
. ERER, WHERBERIFH
. 55 MBRA T B S W= s AT AL S5 4.

NEBNEIER R EARFERERAR, SRS ANBESRT., SHLEER. 34
2R FMRRUIPERERRR. KRR AEBMSREENE 9 S FHT R R R
BONERTHMEHRE, FRUEZMEENE 0 S AVEXHTH RIKK TR A2 T
THRE. FRERSHRFESHBTER.
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37.

ENEERBRABOR (8D

GRS (85)

FIEF OHE TBRUEBEM T AR TRAANGERRARNRS RSB T ANEENET
RN RE RGN . REFSEAASERS AT IRNE MR, B_NBREE
=Hri:

HEB HERBEAF ARSI, RRERE 12 N ANBHERTRRARE.

-l 12 S AR E 7= A DR B B RAR KR B, A5 R A i R B
BERTHRIRE.

BEHR HASIBER NG RRE . SEARAEGARNTRERTHRNRE.

EHRETIALE LR, SEEH R At 2 3 Hoh R sk 50R 75 ] 5] W e #A1E H BB P A4S
BRIV AEFTE MBS RN TUH T A R R EERERRE. EEEMGET
2021 £ & 2020 4F 12 A 31 BAEBRER MM ERMATHFTLERNENERRE.

F2021 4 12 A31 H, FAREEAEFNDERTTEXRFERRKEEE BEFH S

FREHRRIE S FRB WM E TR REAER. FXREEAR [SL08%>~] & [ Rk
AR FASIBEI ) T E S SRR 33— 2 s B R A B T M S IR 18 & 20.

AR
ASH P RHE R LB T AR EE T, AT RN RS AR
RIS TR, FRANBRR SRBB R R KRR SRR, B
SRR AT S L S EBUHITAS R R (SRR, LM SRHEIR B AT
BAR.
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37.

W55 U B B A SLBUR (48D

TR (5R)

TREFIEEFATREPROFATETRSRAROBREAYIRER, HETFELRTANR
&NE (LEEEAMNER (WEES) REREHABTHFETERFR) REEAZE

B FRZTMB R BHFIH:
2021
EHRFW —EPE FWELE
HERE —FA BF {BF
MmErE S8 BRRER  BEA  RER EFENE
FHT T FEHrL THEx THEx T
TEARAT MR B oAt
BT at 3,019,103 3,019,103 3,019,103 - - -
FABE S 6,402 6,790 5,383 874 72 461
i Bx 14,441,938 16,075,274 3,774,419 4,715,394 4,882,834 2,702,627
17,467,443 19,101,167 6,798,905 4,716,268 4,882,906 2,703,088
2020
EBHRIFTH —EPE wERE
HeERE —ER BF B8+
KM BE RIEER  FER HERA ZEUE
FHT FHxx TET FEx TFET TEETL
T RATIRER B HoAth
MATRIMMERAM 2,314,050 2,314,050 2,314,050 - - -
& 11,756 12,397 8,757 3,123 46 471
5T 11,078,133 12,322,948 2,584,139 3,050,538 4,539,397 2,148,874
13,403,939 14,649,395 4,906,946 3,053,661 4,539,443 2,149,345
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37. WMFAEEHEBIREBUE (48)
IR (4)

HRBIEIKE M E S 519 2,672,695,000 37T (2020 48: 2,599,849,000 L) &
237,739,000 #5% (2020 4F: 293,756,000 #75) MIMATARHEE R R XHiIFLE, BF
WA BARE XIS EE FAEFANPN. REATPBRTNS, &XMNM
AT RFHE LRI R LIRS 2,737,331,000 875 (2020 4E: 2,704,648,000 # L)
BUTHRES: F20214F 12 31 B, 1,756,275,000 BT 435 [—4F pkshigs
R EE, K 981,056,000 B KN [—E HETFHER] £2F (2020 &
1,032,713,000 ¥ T 53K [ —HERERIEER | 4258, & 1,671,935,000 T4
[—EU BETFHER] £  HXEARE RS AR TR SR BT
246,086,000 375 (2020 4F: 311,243,000 5T) HUTFTHREF: F 20214 12 A 31
H, 76,409,000 L3 [—EABIEER] 148, & 169,677,000 EsdH
[ HETFHER] E (2020 4F: 72,787,000 BTSN [—ENRZER]
28 74,028,000 BTG AN [—EU LEFHEN | 5, & 164,428,000 ETH4
FA THREUEETRER] £85) .

AR FIE THXREPEEE, BREATFRSZ XTI SETAEFNERR
Sho MIBATMMBZHZRK, T 20214 12 H 31 BB REZKN: F 2022 FE TSR
934,131,000 376, T 2023 sERIRAELIE 1,014,522,000 55, BT 2024 £E% 2026 EFHE
2% 855,610,000 75 (2020 £E: T 2021 ERIRILLE 103,226,000 T8, F 2022 ZEAIH
23 918,742,000 975, KT 2023 fEZE 2025 LI 1,834,593,000 ETT) -

B SCRHES G FAHCEM BAIE, HRER IR X TR E FAEH
HIIEDUERSE . IRBREF=LIHESZ K, F 2021 4 12 A 31 BHERAEZE: F 2022
FRHEE 76,409,000 7T, F 2023 EBIHHEIE 77,563,000 875, BT 2024 £ 2025
FRRUZIE 98,249,000 #TT (2020 48: T 2021 BT 72,787,000 #5T, F 2022 48
BIRMZIE 74,028,000 #TT K T 2023 £ FE 2025 FEFIRIALE 170,360,000 HEIL) .
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37.

W% RS EH B AR R (48)

HLE R

FRAEEHBAN NFE BTV RRAR A SRS 8 R R R ARSI, D
FHR AR HE R KA.

ARFREBBRER SN, FEALSEEEBRMSH. RIFFRG IR BI Y. A&
lilZﬁmﬁﬂstﬁEﬁxﬁmﬁ%ﬁ#Zﬁ%&iiﬁﬁ'—ﬁﬂﬁﬁkﬁﬁHﬁé&ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ:&lEl#&%—Pﬁ%
Z MR AT . T 2021 4F 5% 20204 12 A 31 Hik#i, BAEHESEH T,

BB R RS P AR A IR B A . D45 v AR A28 b S 5575 AT DAL 28
BT, MEETRARER (UAERASSMSRARFR, FOEEEAE. AR
REEBRSED BRERASENWIE. RSB ERA. 8 B RAS.

2021 2020

T FHETT

LA W 3R e AR A 5k TR 3,215,673 2,540,938
L 14,441,938 11,078,133
W A& RREENY ( 2,281,986) ( 1,719,530)
(il 15,375,625 11,899,541
8 EER 13,163,232 11,405,859
e ger by Eal A 117% 104%

R 95 SR I 24 FT IR 2 RATRE AU A e A S E T 55 L 2 341, AT
ShFr N2 3 A H5E FT AR
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W} %5 1R Wi
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38.

M IEE

(2)

®

(©)

@)

(e)

%mn$1E3E,KﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁW%%w&,umnﬁﬂmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
%ﬂ%*bﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁ—%(r%@%#¢ﬁmaj),ﬁ&&ﬁ%A%m
319,519,000, FrRgLE<Er 0IR H B THH A ERATE 5K BN 50,000 SEIT K M vran s
BR300 4.

T2022% 1 A 130, AARAHAXTHENBERRFE-HARFHN RSN
555, AESHART 1012, RITERZEN 2.50%FHIRA 150 K. MKE = B0
MEFRITERORSHATHALATRBAANEERS.

T20224 28 25H, AAREABHELAART 7 ZHESHUARFHHGAT
35 ([E=MATMES] ) 2HELER. FAFACDLOSREELTIART
251,100,000 A=A A HS ( [CESE=WATAMS] ) ; RETREESTIA
Rl 251,100,000 EE S =MATME. Mk, TEMKLEREEENCEEE=
A R

T 202253 7, AAFHG A RIEMBHRTE N B35 B HLHUARFHHEIX
SPHIRER L EREABAE, EHSBTAART 02, FEENEE L EaBE
TS, EREMSREHED, AT MR RATEAA L R,

%mn¢4ﬁm5,$ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%*@Wﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%zﬁA%ﬁﬁﬁ%¢%¥

B, AESAARMT 1012, RIFEFIERN 3.10% KRB RT ORI =E. Bk
FERPRRERTBENESBA TR AL AARBADNEERS.
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39. FAFZMEWRAE

AT ATRENR AL THM SRR Z IR -

RSB =

Yl TBEREE
6 KB A =S
Hh SR
T BB B
M=

Fo At B2 W Bk 5
Kt éabpr /=
e RAESEMY
W R =B
Hizh 5

HoAth RLATERI5
W
Wah f 0 S5
BB e vl

B B EWRIR S S5

IEEN 1R
1E5

TR

i
A
k%

&I

2021 2020
T F#x

- 5
11,505,621 10,880,417
- 409,147
11,505,621 11,289,569
8,483,239 6,502,232
222,880 -
134,962 23,128
8,841,081 6,525,360
147,539 99,253
2,897,360 1,954,648
3,044,899 2,053,901
5,796,182 4,471,459
17,301,803 15,761,028
6,047,143 5,129,809
11,254,660 10,631,219
2,860,877 2,860,877
8,393,783 7,770,342
11,254,660 10,631,219
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4. EEMBAREH (&)

FEMRRSL/ (&Y L5y
it E R HiER/ EATIRL &

B F=A1%: = TEM AR A NEFH D EESE
BEE jaE
HIKKE (KiE) HRAT HE, ARM - 100 157K ab 2
(AORR [JERKS R PEAR 120,000,000
HRAF) )~ (MHE@E)
KEEHRITUR T 95 7K 40 B AT j tE ARM - 100 BAKAER
A7) (KHE@) HEAH 13,000,000
RERIM= 1 L5k kb3 FE, ARM - 100 5k
HRAR" (BEE) FEAA 10,000,000
KEFIWKSERAT" HE, AR - 100 15K
(BHEE) K BHE®E)) HEAH 30,000,000
FERIKGKEERA T HE, AR - 100 HFAKAE
CPHEE@4) FEAM 10,000,000
FEREMAKKEZFRAF" HhE, AR - 100  i5/KAEE
CBRHE4)) HERAM 80,000,000 H7K B
T KB E TR A A FE,/ AR - 100 TREEH
CRUFR [HEMTI e A% hERH 48,000,000
EMERAR] )
CFfHE@)D
PHVER KK E B RAR" FE, ARM - 100 VEY s
CHHE@D REEH 10,000,000
BN ILEE kB ERA T hiE, AR - 100 Sk R
(HEE@)) FEAM 60,000,000
KEERMKKEHRAR FE, ART - 100 157K AL
(FiE¥E@) PEAK 10,000,000
LHFETERIB (BR) AR FE, 13,000,000 - 80 HAWRE
Ad]" rh [ P 3 ¥k IR A
Hifl
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40.
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2
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R TV 7K A FR R 7T
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HRAFKFAE GTH)
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ARAE" (X))

HRKE (%) FRAT
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AKRKE QI FRAF
(FE@)

HKKE (MR HRAF
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4. FEMBATEE (&)

M AL/ BRAT
Bic A X il FAFRL &

B Bk 5 FEAM B A WEESH FEVE
B AR

HRAKE (X)) HRAF' FE, 133,884,300 - 100 KR
(FHE@)) h E b T

KRR M) BRAER i 100 ¥t - 100 BEER
AH]

HARIKSE (FEM) HRAF FEH, 12,280,000 - 100 157K kb2
CHtE@)) o Py %7

KKKE TTH) HRAF FE, AR - 70 V57K A3
(K@) FENH 278,877,000

HKKE (HFEFHE) R HE AR - 100 V5K ab
AF" (HEE) hEMH 386,848,000

HKKE (FF) BRAER i 100 #75 - 100 R
2AF]

HRKE CEM) BRAR FE AR - 100 BKABEE

CRUFR [SRKIRR CEHD REAH 183,365,200 thyK B H

FRAF L ) " (W@

FoK GEEIRE) shkib®E FE, 4,925,000 . 100 EARAHEE
AMAR" (ME@) ] Py e sk [ A

KK (HreaER) KEHERAR! HhE, ARM - 999  EKAEE

(FHE@)) PERHL 104,291,600 K [E

HARKE (Frid) HRAF" FE,” 106,246,600 - 100 VoK 4k 3
(HH#E@)) e B P E ™

HKKE (FrEZEE) HRAT FE, AR - 99 T5KAb3E
(FE@)) hEAH 85,200,000

HXKF (BR) HFRAR FE, AR - 100 1SIKALE

(FHE@)) FEAH 58,200,000

101



RENAKEERAF
W R RFE
BE-Z S+ _-A=+—Hit&EF

40.

EEMBEAFRR ()

HEA L
Fich R Kk

28 f= 114 P

KXARE (R HRAF FE
(FHE@)) v B A

XKAKE () BRAT HE,

A 3

KAKAKS GERE) HRAF FE
CRHE)) H R A 3
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(@) T E A

AXkE (BT BRAH HE
CIERAKEET ) *# T E At
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HKRE F&H) HRAR HE,
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(FE@))

HKAE GRYD ARAF HE

T Py

HAKE GEHD HRAR FE
() o Pyt

FRKE (BH) BRERAR i

HRAKE (BB HRAF HE,
(PREQ)Z @) H P 3
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HIRAF* (HHE@))

HKK%G (Hi¥) HRAF"

FRKE (BRM) BRAER
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40. EEMEATER (8

HEA R AL/ BR1T
BidH A K HiEs AAF R

SRR Bk ik i A B A WA FEWVE
BEE A

HRKEMERE (FF) hE, ARR - 100 FEARBR

FRAE" FEAH 10,000,000 K%

HRAKGE TR HREAF" FE, 100,000,000 - 100 SKAEE

(ME@)) b [ Py Hh ETT =geiafEa

Kk

LI ERAFRETREAERART FE AR - 100 2ETH
HEINH 55,080,000

Frb K gk A T FE, AR - 80  fitsk. KIE

(@D FEAH 250,000,000 KAt

BERZE

BEMKKEERAR" HE,” 83,130,000 - 100 5K E

(HEE@E)) E A T sk E

EENKEAKLEERAT wE, AR - 100 ¥5/K4038 K

(MHE@D hERR 31,523,400 K =

FHRRERAH RBBEIREES 100 £ 7% - 100 REER

Ocean Force International RBHERRESY 1370 100 - BB

Limited

REIFE hE, AR - 65 VEY Ol
FERAH 10,000,000

PRV B R ER A RA T HE, ARM - 100 KREH
hEAH 20,000,000

BRI B R EARAT" HE, 35,000,000 - 100 157K b E
T E A ETT

HKFE (EH) FRAT hE, ARM - 95 VeV (5]
CFE@E) FEAH 69,286,190
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40.

FEMBEATRY (8

FEM AL/
L H Evih S
FITOKERER AR thE,
1 B Py b
Oriental Fortune International ¥
Limited
FERIRTTIE K AL EA FRA R HE,
CHHE@)) v A
=TI RKEHRAT hE,
(FHEEY o & P 3
iR RBE R TR HE,
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